SUPREME COURT COPY

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA, DEATH PENALTY
Plaintiff and Respondent, 3012279
\ A

DAVID ALLEN LUCAS,
Defendant and Appellant.

San Diego County Superior Court Nos. CR73093 & CR75195
The Honorable Laura P. Hammes, Judge

RESPONDENT’S BRIEF
SUPREME COURT
FILED
JAN 1 2 2006 BILL LOCKYER
Frederick K. Ohlrich Clerk Attorney General of the State of California
o ROBERT R. ANDERSON
DEPUTY

Chief Assistant Attorney General

GARY W. SCHONS
Senior Assistant Attorney General

HOLLY D. WILKENS
Supervising Deputy Attorney General

WILLIAM M. WOOD
Deputy Attorney General
State Bar No. 73219

110 West “A” Street, Suite 1100
San Diego, CA 92101

P.O. Box 85266

San Diego, CA 92186-5266
Telephone: (619) 645-2202

Fax: (619) 645-2191

Email: William.Wood@doj.ca.gov

Attorneys for Respondent

UEATH PENALTY




TABLE OF CONTENTS

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

INTRODUCTION

CR 73093

CR 75195

Consolidation

STATEMENT OF FACTS

INTRODUCTION

The May 4, 1979, Murders Of Suzanne Jacobs And Her

Three-year Old Son, Colin (Counts One And Two)

The June 8-9, 1984, Kidnapping And Attempted Murder Of

Jodie Santiago (Counts Four And Five)

The November 20, 1984, Kidnapping And Murder Of Anne

Swanke (Counts Eight And Nine)

Similarities In The Throat Slashing Injuries

DEFENSE

INTRODUCTION

A.

B.

C.

D.

The Jacob’s Matter
Santiago Attempted Murder
Anne Swanke Murder

Dissimilarities In The Throat Slashing Injuries

PROSECUTION REBUTTAL

Page

18

25
35
37
37
37
45
48
52

52



TABLE OF CONTENTS (continued)

PENALTY PHASE
PROSECUTION CASE
DEFENSE CASE
PROSECUTION REBUTTAL
DEFENSE SURREBUTTAL
ARGUMENT
INTRODUCTION

I. THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ABUSE ITS
DISCRETION IN DENYING DISCOVERY,
NOR DID IT ERR IN DENYING APPELLANT
A HEARING ON HIS JURY COMPOSITION
CHALLENGE BASED ON HIS OFFER OF
PROOF WHICH FAILED TO MAKE A
PRIMA FACIE SHOWING OF A VIOLATION
OF THE FAIR CROSS-SECTION
REQUIREMENT

A. Proceedings In The Trial Court

B. The Trial Court Did Not Abuse Its Discretion
In Denying Discovery

C. Appellant’s Offer Of Proof Was Insufficient To
Support His Request For A Hearing On His Jury
Challenge Motion

II. THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ABUSE ITS
DISCRETION OR VIOLATE APPELLANT’S
RIGHT TO A FAIR TRIAL BY DENYING
APPELLANT’S MOTION TO IMPOSE A

il

Page

53
53
53
57
58
60

60

60

61

66

75



III.

VII.

TABLE OF CONTENTS (continued)

PRIOR RESTRAINT ON THE RIGHT OF THE
PRESS TO PUBLISH THE JURORS’
NAMES

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ABUSE ITS
DISCRETION OR VIOLATE APPELLANT’S
CONSTITUTIONAL RIGHTS BY ORDERING
CONSOLIDATION OF CASES CR 73093 AND
CR 79195

A. Law Governing Consolidation
B. Analysis

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ERR OR
VIOLATE ANY OF APPELLANT’S RIGHTS
IN DECLINING TO HEAR THE ENTIRE
TRIAL BEFORE RULING ON WHETHER
THE PROSECUTION HAD MADE AN
ADEQUATE SHOWING TO SUPPORT A
FINDING OF CROSS-ADMISSIBILITY

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ABUSE ITS
DISCRETION IN CONCLUDING THAT
THERE WAS INSUFFICIENT FOUNDATION
FOR ADMISSION OF THE DEFENSE
EXPERT TESTIMONY DURING THE CROSS-
ADMISSIBILITY HEARING

THE TRIAL COURT PROPERLY
CONSIDERED THE CRIMES 1IN
DETERMINING CROSS-ADMISSIBILITY
AND CONSOLIDATION

APPELLANT WAIVED HIS CLAIM THAT

THE TRIAL COURT IMPROPERLY
“BOOTSTRAPPED” ITS IN LIMINE

111

Page

83

88
95

98

114

120

125



VIIL

XI.

TABLE OF CONTENTS (continued)

RULINGS AND THERE WAS NO IMPROPER
“BOOTSTRAPPING”

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ERR IN
DENYING AN EVIDENTIARY HEARING ON
APPELLANT’S CLAIM OF
PROSECUTORIAL VINDICTIVENESS
BECAUSE THE ALLEGED VINDICTIVE
ACTION - THE CONSOLIDATION MOTION -
DID NOT INCREASE APPELLANT’S
POTENTIAL SENTENCE

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ERR IN
INCLUDING A CAUTIONARY
INSTRUCTION ON THE PROPER
CONSIDERATION OF EVIDENCE OF
MULTIPLE CRIMES IN ITS PRELIMINARY
INSTRUCTIONS TO THE JURY

THE MULTIPLE COUNTS INSTRUCTION
DID NOT FAIL TO REQUIRE THE JURY TO
FIND APPELLANT COMMITTED THE
OTHER COUNTS AS CIRCUMSTANTIAL
EVIDENCE AND OTHER COUNTS
EVIDENCE WAS NOT REQUIRED TO BE
PROVED BEYOND A REASONABLE
DOUBT

THE TRIAL COURT CORRECTLY
INSTRUCTED THE JURY ON THE
PRELIMINARY FACT NECESSARY TO
SUPPORT AN INFERENCE OF IDENTITY
FROM CROSS-ADMISSIBLE COUNTS

APPELLANT WAIVED HIS CLAIM THAT
THE OTHER COUNTS INSTRUCTION WAS
INADEQUATE TO ADVISE THE JURY ON
THE DEFENSE THEORY AND, IN ANY

iv

Page

126

129

134

138

142



XIIL

XV,

XVI.

XVIIL

TABLE OF CONTENTS (continued)

CASE, THE INSTRUCTION WAS NOT
ERRONEOUS

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ERR IN
FAILING TO REQUIRE JURY UNANIMITY
ON CROSS-OFFENSE SIMILARITY BEFORE
CONSIDERING SUCH EVIDENCE

LOSS OF THE FINGERPRINT ON THE LOVE
INSURANCE NOTE DID NOT VIOLATE DUE
PROCESS BECAUSE THE FINGERPRINT
HAD NO APPARENT EXCULPATORY
VALUE AND THERE WAS NO BAD FAITH
INVOLVED

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ERR IN
ADMITTING PHOTOGRAPHS OF THE
LOVE INSURANCE NOTE OVER
APPELLANT’S AUTHENTICATION
OBJECTION AND THE ERRONEOUS
FAILURE TO INSTRUCT THE JURY TO
DETERMINE THE ISSUE OF THE
PHOTOGRAPHS’ AUTHENTICATION WAS
HARMLESS

APPELLANT FORFEITED HIS CLAIM THAT
PHOTOGRAPHS OF THE LOVE
INSURANCE NOTE WERE NOT CERTIFIED
AND, IN ANY CASE, BECAUSE THE
PHOTOGRAPHS WERE NOT OFFERED TO
PROVE THE CONTENT OF THE NOTE, THE
BEST EVIDENCE RULE AND ITS
EXCEPTIONS FOR SECONDARY EVIDENCE
WERE NOT A PROPER BASIS FOR
EXCLUSION

APPELLANT FORFEITED HIS CLAIM THAT
THE TRIAL COURT FAILED TO EXERCISE

Page

145

149

150

157

161



XVIIIL.

XIX.

XXI.

XXII.

TABLE OF CONTENTS (continued)

ITS DISCRETION UNDER THE BEST
EVIDENCE RULE AND, IN ANY CASE, THE
BEST EVIDENCE RULE WAS NOT A
PROPER BASIS FOR EXCLUSION OF THE
PHOTOGRAPHS OF THE LOVE
INSURANCE NOTE

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ERR IN
CONCLUDING THAT THE PRINCIPLES
CONTROLLING ADMISSION OF EXPERT
OPINION BASED ON NEW SCIENTIFIC
TECHNIQUES WERE NOT APPLICABLE TO
AN EXPERT’S OPINION BASED ON
HANDWRITING COMPARISON

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ABUSE ITS
DISCRETION IN RULING ON THE DEFENSE
EVIDENTIARY CHALLENGE TO
ADMISSIBILITY OF THE PROSECUTION
HANDWRITING EXPERT TESTIMONY

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT VIOLATE
EVIDENCE CODE SECTIONS 352 OR 1418,
OR DUE PROCESS IN ADMITTING THE
HANDWRITING EXPERT’S OPINION

APPELLANT FORFEITED HIS CHALLENGE
TO ADMISSIBILITY OF THE
HANDWRITING EXPERT COMPARISON
BASED ON LACK OF THE ORIGINAL AND,
IN ANY CASE, IT WAS NOT ERROR TO
PERMIT THE COMPARISON

HAVING FAILED TO OFFER HIS
HANDWRITING <“EXPERTS,” THE
PROFICIENCY STUDIES, AND THE IN-
COURT TESTING OF THE PROSECUTION
EXPERT AT TRIAL APPELLANT

vi

Page

165

167

175

182

185



XXIII.

XXV.

XXVIL

XXVI.

TABLE OF CONTENTS (continued)

FORFEITED HIS CLAIM OF ERRONEOUS
EXCLUSION

BECAUSE FRANK CLARK HAD PERSONAL
KNOWLEDGE OF APPELLANT’S
HANDWRITING, THE TRIAL COURT DID
NOT ERR IN ADMITTING HIS OPINION
THAT APPELLANT WROTE THE LOVE
INSURANCE NOTE

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ERR IN
EXCLUDING THE HEARSAY STATEMENT
OF ROCHELLE COLEMAN WHICH
PURPORTEDLY IDENTIFIED DAVID
WOODS AS THE WRITER OF THE LOVE
INSURANCE NOTE

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ERR BY
REFUSING APPELLANT’S ERRONEOUS
INSTRUCTION ON HANDWRITING
COMPARISON EVIDENCE

THE FAILURE TO PRESERVE HAIR FOR
POSSIBLE LATER ELECTROPHORETIC
TESTING DID NOT VIOLATE DUE PROCESS
BECAUSE THE HAIR HAD NO APPARENT
EXCULPATORY VALUE AND THERE WAS
NO BAD FAITH INVOLVED

APPELLANT WAS NOT DENIED HIS RIGHT
TO CONFRONTATION DURING HIS CROSS-
EXAMINATION OF MASSINGALE BY
TRIAL COURT ERROR OR LATE
DISCOVER

A. Massingale’s Financial Bias

vil

Page

186

191

196

202

204

207

207



XXVIIL

XXXI.

XXXII.

TABLE OF CONTENTS (continued)

Page

B. Discovery Of Police Report On Massingale’s Domestic
Violence 212

C. Discovery Of Photographs Shown To Massingale
During His Confession 216

D. Conclusion 221

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ERR IN
DENYING AN ARGUMENTATIVE,
INAPPLICABLE INSTRUCTION ON
CONSCIOUSNESS OF GUILT 222

THE TRIAL COURT’S INSTRUCTION ON
THIRD PARTY SUSPECT EVIDENCE DID
NOT UNDERMINE THE PROSECUTION’S
BURDEN OF PROOF OR IMPOSE A BURDEN
OF PROOF ON APPELLANT 225

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ABUSE ITS
DISCRETION IN DENYING APPELLANT’S
MOTION TO RECUSE THE SAN DIEGO
COUNTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY 228

BY FAILING TO OBJECT IN THE TRIAL
COURT, APPELLANT FORFEITED HIS
CLAIM THAT HE WAS DENIED A FAIR
OPPORTUNITY TO LITIGATE THE
RELTIABILITY OF SANTIAGO’S
IDENTIFICATIONS AND THE CLAIM IS
WITHOUT MERIT 231

THE PHOTOGRAPHIC LINEUP
IDENTIFICATION OF APPELLANT BY
SANTIAGO WAS NOT THE PRODUCT OF
AN UNNECESSARY AND UNDULY
SUGGESTIVE PROCEDURE AND, IN ANY
EVENT, SANTIAGO’S IDENTIFICATION OF

viii



XXXIIIL.

XXXIV.

XXXV.

XX¥ VI

XXXVII

XXXVIII.

TABLE OF CONTENTS (continued)

APPELLANT WAS RELIABLE UNDER THE
TOTALITY OF CIRCUMSTANCES

APPELLANT FORFEITED HIS CHALLENGE
TO THE PRE-LINEUP ADMONISHMENT
WHICH IS ALSO WITHOUT MERIT

APPELLANT FORFEITED HIS CHALLENGE
TO THE MANNER IN WHICH THE LINEUP
PHOTOGRAPHS WERE PRESENTED,
WHICH IS ALSO WITHOUT MERIT

THE DUE PROCESS CLAUSE DOES NOT
APPLY TO IDENTIFICATION OF PHYSICAL
EVIDENCE

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ABUSE ITS
DISCRETION IN EXCLUDING DEFENSE
EYEWITNESS IDENTIFICATION
EXPERTS

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ABUSE ITS
DISCRETION OR VIOLATE APPELLANT’S
CONSTITUTIONAL RIGHTS BY
EXCLUDING SANTIAGO’S LAY OPINION
ON WHETHER THE PHOTOGRAPHS IN
THE LINEUP MATCHED HER
DESCRIPTION

THE TRIAL COURT PROPERLY FOUND
THAT SANTIAGO HAD NOT CONSENTED
TO DEFENSE-PROPOSED TESTING AND
DID NOT PREVENT THE DEFENSE FROM
CONTACTING SANTIAGO

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT PREVENT

DEFENSE EXPERTS FROM TESTIFYING
SPECIFICALLY ABOUT SANTIAGO’S

X

Page

236

243

246

248

251

261

264



XL.

XLI.

XLIIL

XLIIIL.

TABLE OF CONTENTS (continued)

ABILITY TO REMEMBER; THE DEFENSE
SIMPLY NEVER PROFFERED SUCH
TESTIMONY

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT PRECLUDE
THE DEFENSE FROM EXPLAINING WHY
ITS EXPERT HAD NOT TESTED SANTIAGO;
THE DEFENSE SIMPLY NEVER OFFERED
SUCH TESTIMONY

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ABUSE ITS
DISCRETION IN PRECLUDING THE
DEFENSE FROM CROSS-EXAMINING
SANTIAGO ABOUT HER CONSENSUAL
SEXUAL ENCOUNTER THE NIGHT BEFORE
SHE WAS ATTACKED

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ABUSE ITS
DISCRETION OR VIOLATE APPELLANT’S
CONSTITUTIONAL RIGHTS WHEN IT
EXCLUDED CONTESTED EVIDENCE THAT
TWO DETECTIVES WERE UNTRUTHFUL
IN TESTIMONY IN ANOTHER CASE

A. Procedural Background And Ruling
B. Argument

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ABUSE ITS
DISCRETION OR VIOLATE APPELLANT’S
CONSTITUTIONAL RIGHTS IN EXCLUDING
EVIDENCE THAT PHOTOGRAPHS OF
APPELLANT OTHER THAN THE ONE USED
IN THE PHOTOGRAPHIC LINEUP WERE
AVAILABLE FOR USE IN THE LINEUP

A. Background

Page

270

273

275

280
280

283

288

289



TABLE OF CONTENTS (continued)

Page

B. Argument 290
XLIV. THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ERR IN
ADMITTING BLOOD ANALYSIS EVIDENCE

OVER APPELLANT’S KELLY OBJECTION 292

A. Kelly Third-prong Challenge To ABO Testing 294

B. Kelly Third-prong Challenge To Electrophoretic Testing
Based On Lack Of Double-reader Agreement 298

C. Kelly Third-prong Challenge To Electrophoretic Testing
Based On Failure To Follow Lab Protocol 300

D. The Kelly Third Prong Does Not Prohibit Expert

Interpretation Of Test Results 302
E. Kelly Challenge To GM And KM Testing 305
1. Prong One 305
2. Prong Three 306

F. The Constitution Does Not Prohibit Expert
Interpretation Of Test Results 306

XLV. THE KELLY PRONG ONE ADMISSIBILITY
STANDARD DOES NOT VIOLATE ANY OF
APPELLANT’S CONSTITUTIONAL
RIGHTS : 307

XLVI. THEREIS NO SIXTH AMENDMENT RIGHT
TO COUNSEL AT SCIENTIFIC TESTING OF
BLOOD SAMPLES BY THE PROSECUTION
BECAUSE SUCH TESTING IS NOT A
CRITICAL STAGE OF THE PROSECUTION 309

X1



XLVIIL.

XLVIIL

XLIX.

TABLE OF CONTENTS (continued)

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ABUSE ITS
DISCRETION OR VIOLATE APPELLANT’S
CONSTITUTIONAL RIGHTS BY
EXCLUDING EVIDENCE OF ALLEGED
THIRD PARTY CULPABILITY IN THE
MURDER OF ANNE SWANKE

A. Trial Proceedings
B. Third Party Suspect Evidence

SHANNON LUCAS’S OUT-OF-COURT
IDENTIFICATION OF THE DOG CHOKE-
CHAIN WAS PROPERLY ADMITTED AS A
SPONTANEOUS DECLARATION WHICH
DID NOT VIOLATE THE MARITAL
PRIVILEGE OR APPELLANT’S
CONSTITUTIONAL RIGHT TO
CONFRONTATION

A. Trial Court Proceedings
B. Spontaneous Statement
C. Marital Privilege

D. Confrontation

E. Harmless

THE TRIAL COURT’S PRELIMINARY
INSTRUCTIONS PROPERLY DESCRIBED
THE JURY’S ROLES IN MAKING FACTUAL
FINDINGS AND APPLYING THE LAW TO
REACH A VERDICT; THE JURY WAS
THOROUGHLY INDOCTRINATED
THROUGHOUT VOIR DIRE ON THE

Xii

Page

314
314

317

320
320
322
325
326

328



LI

LIL

LIIIL.

LIV.

LV.

TABLE OF CONTENTS (continued)

PRESUMPTION OF INNOCENCE AND THE
BURDEN OF PROOF BEYOND A
REASONABLE DOUBT

A. Jury’s Duty

B. Prosecution’s Burden And Presumption Of
Innocence

THERE IS NO STATE OR FEDERAL DUE
PROCESS VIOLATION ARISING FROM A
CRIMINAL PROSECUTION IN THE NAME
OF THE PEOPLE

THE TRIAL COURT’S FAILURE TO
INSTRUCT THE JURY TO VIEW
ACCOMPLICE TESTIMONY WITH
DISTRUST WAS HARMLESS

BECAUSE THE JURY WAS ADEQUATELY
INSTRUCTED ON FACTORS RELEVANT TO
ASSESSING A WITNESS TESTIMONY, THE
TRIAL COURT DID NOT ERR IN REFUSING
APPELLANT’S SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONTO
CONSIDER A WITNESS’S IMMUNITY

THE TRIAL COURT PROPERLY REFUSED
DEFENSE PROFFERED INSTRUCTIONS ON
PRELIMINARY FINDINGS

APPELLANT FORFEITED HIS CHALLENGE
TO USE OF THE TERM “EXPERT WITNESS”
AND USE OF THE TERM WAS NOT ONE-
SIDED AND DID NOT IMPROPERLY GIVE
UNDUE STATURE TO THOSE WITNESSES

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ERR IN
REJECTING A DEFENSE INSTRUCTION

Xiil

Page

329

330

332

335

341

345

349

353



LVIL

LVII.

LVIIL

LIX.

LX.

TABLE OF CONTENTS (continued)

DEFINING THE TERM ¢“INFERENCE”
WHICH DUPLICATED THE TRIAL
COURT’S OWN INSTRUCTION

THERE IS NO REASONABLE LIKELIHOOD
THAT THE JURY VIEWED THE
INSTRUCTIONS AS PERMITTING IT TO
ARBITRARILY DISREGARD EVIDENCE

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ERR IN
REFUSING APPELLANT’S INSTRUCTION
DESIGNATING OPINION TESTIMONY AS
CIRCUMSTANTIAL EVIDENCE

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ERR IN
DECLINING TO DELETE THE
INSTRUCTION TITLES FROM THE
WRITTEN INSTRUCTIONS

THE TRIAL COURT’S INSTRUCTIONS
WERE NOT IMRPOPERLY COERCIVE

THERE WERE NO DEFICIENCIES IN THE
TRIAL COURT’S INSTRUCTIONS

A. Use Of “Guilt Or Innocence”

B. Failure To Sua Sponte Define “Material”

C. “Probability Of Truth” And “Convincing Force™:

D. CALJIC No. 2.20 (Witness Credibility)
E. Witness Testimony Instructions
F. Instruction On Prior Testimony

G. Cumulative Prejudice

X1V

Page

356

357

361

363

365

368
368
369
370
371
373
375

376



LXI.

LXII.

LXITII.

LXIV.

LXV.

LXVL

TABLE OF CONTENTS (continued)

THE PRESUMPTION THAT JURORS
UNDERSTOOD THE TRIAL COURT’S
GUILT AND PENALTY PHASE
INSTRUCTIONS IS NOT REBUTTED BY
EMPIRICAL STUDIES WHICH WERE NOT
SUBJECTED TO CROSS-EXAMINATION,
THE DECISION TO IMPROVE THE
REASONABLE DOUBT INSTRUCTION, OR
THE EFFORTS TO IMPROVE THE JURY
INSTRUCTIONS IN GENERAL

THE TRIAL COURT’S INSTRUCTIONS
CLEARLY AND UNAMBIGUOUSLY
PLACED THE ONLY BURDEN OF PROOF
ON THE PROSECUTION

THE TRIAL COURT’S INSTRUCTIONS
FULLY AND ADEQUATELY EXPLAINED
THE PROSECUTION’S BURDEN OF
PROOF

THE TRIAL COURT’S INSTRUCTION WITH
CALJIC NO. 2.90 FULLY AND
ADEQUATELY DEFINED THE
PROSECUTION’S BURDEN OF PROOF

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ERR IN
REFUSING THE DEFENSE-REQUESTED
INSTRUCTIONS ON CLEAR AND
CONVINCING EVIDENCE AND
REASONABLE DOUBT AS THEY WERE
IRRELEVANT AND ERRONEOUS

THE TRIAL COURT’S REASONABLE
DOUBT INSTRUCTION DID NOT REQUIRE
THE JURORS TO ARTICULATE THE
REASON FOR ANY DOUBT

XV

Page

377

381

384

388

392

392



LXVIIL

LXVIIIL

LXIX.

LXX.

LXXI.

TABLE OF CONTENTS (continued)

“POSSIBLE DOUBT” UNTETHERED TO A
REASONABLE CONSIDERATION OF THE
EVIDENCE IS PROPERLY EXCLUDED AS A
BASIS FOR FINDING REASONABLE
DOUBT

THE REFERENCES TO “MORAL
EVIDENCE” AND “MORAL CERTAINTY” IN
THE REASONABLE DOUBT INSTRUCTION
DID NOT UNDERMINE THE
PROSECUTION’S BURDEN OF PROOF

CALJIC NOS. 2.01 AND 2.02 DO NOT
LIGHTEN THE PROSECUTION’S BURDEN
OF PROOF OR CREATE A MANDATORY
PRESUMPTION

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ERR IN
REJECTING A DEFENSE-REQUESTED
INSTRUCTION WHICH ERRONEOUSLY
IMPORTED CIRCUMSTANTIAL EVIDENCE
PRINCIPLES INTO THE JURY’S
CONSIDERATION OF DIRECT EVIDENCE

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT VIOLATE
STATE OR CONSTITUTIONAL LAW BY
PROVIDING THE JURY WITH
TRANSCRIPTS OF A WITNESS’S

TESTIMONY RATHER THAN HAVING
THAT TESTIMONY READ

A. Right To Personal Presence And Counsel
B. Right To Presence Of Trial Judge

C. Public Trial

XVvi

Page

395

397

398

400

402
403
404

405



LXXITI.

LXXIII.

LXXIV.

LXXV.

LXXVI.

TABLE OF CONTENTS (continued)

THE TRIAL COURT’S INSTRUCTIONS
CORRECTLY ADVISED THE JURY ON THE
PROPER USE OF TRANSCRIBED
TESTIMONY

THE TRIAL COURT’S INSTRUCTIONS
PROPERLY DESCRIBED THE ROLE OF
THE JURY FOREPERSON

APPELLANT’S CLAIM OF CUMULATIVE
ERROR IS WITHOUT MERIT

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT FORECLOSE
PROPER HOVEY VOIR DIRE OR GENERAL
VOIR DIRE ON APPELLANT’S PRIOR RAPE
CONVICTION

A. Factual Background
B. Law And Analysis

APPELLANT’S CLAIM THAT DENIAL OF
HIS STATUTORY JUDICIAL
DISQUALIFICATION MOTION WAS
ERRONEOUS IS NOT COGNIZABLE ON
APPEAL; APPELLANT’S DUE PROCESS
CLAIM THAT THE TRIAL COURT WAS
NOT IMPARTIAL IN HEARING HIS
MOTION CHALLENGING THE
CONSTITUTIONALITY OF HIS PRIOR RAPE
CONVICTION IS BARRED AND WITHOUT
MERIT

A. Procedural Background

B. Appellant’s Statutory Claim Is Not Cognizable

Xvii

Page

406

410

412

412
413

419

423
424

429



LXXVII.

LXXVIIL

TABLE OF CONTENTS (continued)

Page

C. Appellant’s Due Process Claim Is Barred And Without

Merit

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ERRIN
DENYING APPELLANT’S MOTION TO
STRIKE HIS PRIOR RAPE CONVICTION AS
EVIDENCE IN AGGRAVATION BECAUSE
APPELLANT FAILED TO DEMONSTRATE
INEFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF HIS TRIAL
ATTORNEY

A. Procedural And Factual Background
1. Rape Conviction Procedural History
2. Rape Conviction Trial
3. Coram Nobis Hearing

B. Ineffective Assistance Of Counsel

1. Appellant Failed To Prove Deficient
Performance

2. Appellant Failed To Prove Prejudice

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ERR IN
FAILING TO STRIKE APPELLANT’S PRIOR
RAPE CONVICTION AS AGGRAVATING
EVIDENCE BASED ON AN ALLEGED
CONFLICT OF INTEREST BY
APPELLANT’S ATTORNEY ON APPEAL
BECAUSE THERE WAS NO CONFLICT OF
INTEREST OR ADVERSE EFFECT ARISING
OUT OF HIS MOTHER’S PAYMENT OF
APPELLATE COUNSEL’S FEE

A. Factual Background

XViil

430

433

433

433

434

440

440

441

443

450

450



LXXIX.

LXXX.

LXXXI.

LXXXII.

TABLE OF CONTENTS (continued)

B. Analysis

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ERR IN

FAILING TO STRIKE APPELLANT’S PRIOR .

RAPE CONVICTION AS AGGRAVATING
EVIDENCE BASED ON APPELLATE
COUNSEL’S FAILURE TO SEEK
REHEARING

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ERR IN
FAILING TO STRIKE APPELLANT’S PRIOR
RAPE CONVICTION AS AGGRAVATING
EVIDENCE BASED ON INEFFECTIVE
ASSISTANCE OF APPELLANT COUNSEL IN
FAILING TO ASSERT ON APPEAL TRIAL
COUNSEL’S INEFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE IN
FAILING TO PRESENT CASAS AS A
DEFENSE WITNESS

APPELLANT DID NOT PROPERLY
PRESERVE HIS CONSTITUTIONAL CLAIM
THAT THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN
EXCLUDING EVIDENCE IN THE PENALTY
PHASE THAT HE PASSED A POLYGRAPH
EXAMINATION CONCERNING HIS PRIOR
RAPE CONVICTION AND, IN ANY CASE,
THE POLYGRAPH EVIDENCE WAS
PROPERLY EXCLUDED

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT EXCLUDE
THE TESTIMONY OF CASAS CONCERNING
APPELLANT’S PRIOR RAPE CONVICTION
AS MITIGATING EVIDENCE BECAUSE
APPELLANT NEVER OFFERED IT AND, IN
ANY CASE, THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT
ERR IN PRECLUDING THE DEFENSE FROM
RETRYING THE RAPE WHEN ONLY THE

X1X

Page

451

455

458

460



LXXXIII.

LXXXIV.

LXXXV.

TABLE OF CONTENTS (continued)

FACT OF THE CONVICTION WAS
OFFERED IN AGGRAVATION

A. Tnal Court Proceedings And Ruling
B. Analysis

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ERR IN
FAILING TO SUA SPONTE INSTRUCT THE
PENALTY PHASE JURY NOT TO CONSIDER
THE GUILT-PHASE CONVICTIONS IN
DETERMINING WHETHER APPELLANT’S
PRIOR RAPE HAD BEEN PROVEN

THE TRIAL COURT INSTRUCTED THE
JURY THAT IT MUST FIND APPELLANT
COMMITTED THE PRIOR RAPE BEYOND A
REASONABLE DOUBT BEFORE
CONSIDERING THE PRIOR RAPE AS A
FACTOR IN AGGRAVATION

APPELLANT WAIVED HIS PRESENCE
WHEN THE TRIAL COURT DISCUSSED
WITH COUNSEL THE DEFENSE EXPERT’S
INADVERTENT POSSESSION OF A
DEFENSE ATTORNEY-PREPARED
DOCUMENT; THERE WAS NEITHER AN
ACTUAL CONFLICT OF INTEREST NOR AN
ADVERSE EFFECT IN DEFENSE
COUNSELS’ REPRESENTATION OF
APPELLANT AT THE HEARING; AND THE
TRIAL COURT ACTED TO ENSURE
APPELLANT’S RIGHT TO A FAIR TRIAL

A. Trial Proceedings

Page

465
465

467

470

473

475

475

B. Appellant Waived His Right To Be Present At The In

Camera Hearing

XX

479



LXXXVI.

LXXXVIIL

LXXXVIII.

TABLE OF CONTENTS (continued)

Page

C. There Was Neither Conflict Of Interest Nor Adverse

Effect
D. Trial Court Impartiality

BY FAILING TO REQUEST
AMPLIFICATION OR MODIFICATION,
APPELLANT WAIVED HIS CLAIM OF
ERROR REGARDING THE TRIAL COURT
INSTRUCTION ON A STIPULATION; IN ANY
CASE, THERE IS NO REASONABLE
LIKELIHOOD THE JURY UNDERSTOOD
THE STIPULATION AND INSTRUCTION IN
THE MANNER APPELLANT SUGGESTS

APPELLANT WAIVED HIS CLAIM OF
PROSECUTORIAL MISCONDUCT AND THE
PROSECUTOR’S PENALTY PHASE
ARGUMENT DID NOT UNDERMINE THE
JURY’S SENSE OF RESPONSIBILITY OR
MISGUIDE THE JURY IN SENTENCING
CONSIDERATIONS

A. The Prosecutor’s Argument
B. Waiver And Admonition

C. No Improper Argument

D. Harmless

APPELLANT WAIVED HIS CLAIM
OF PROSECUTORIAL
MISCONDUCT AND, IN ANY CASE,
THE PROSECUTOR’S PENALTY
PHASE ARGUMENT DID NOT
MINIMIZE THE JURY’S ROLE,

XXi

481

482

483

485

485

4388

490

492



LXXXIX.

XC.

XCI.

TABLE OF CONTENTS (continued)

SUGGEST A DEATH SENTENCE
WAS PREORDAINED, OR
IMPROPERLY DISCOUNT THE
EVIDENCE OFFERED 1IN
MITIGATION

A. Waiver

B. Caldwell Error

C. Duty To Reach A Patricular Result

D. Disregard Or Discount Mitigating Evidence

BY FAILING TO TIMELY OBJECT,
APPELLANT FORFEITED HIS
PROSECUTORIAL CLAIM AND, IN ANY
CASE, THE PROSECUTOR DID NOT ERR IN
ARGUING THE RELATIVE WEIGHT OF
APPELLANT’S MITIGATING EVIDENCE

THE ALLEGED INSTANCES OF
PROSECUTORIAL MISCONDUCT 1IN
PENALTY PHASE ARGUMENT DID NOT
CUMULATIVELY PREJUDICE
APPELLANT

APPELLANT FORFEITED HIS APPELLATE
CHALLENGE TO THE TRIAL COURT’S
DENIAL OF HIS CHALLENGE FOR CAUSE
BY FAILURE TO USE AN AVAILABLE
PEREMPTORY CHALLENGE TO REMOVE
THE JUROR AND THE T RIAL COURT DID
NOT ERR IN ITS RULING

A. Juror S.B.

B. Forfeiture

xxii

Page

493
494
494
496

498

499

501

501
501

504



XCII.

XCIIL.

XCIV.

XCV.

XCVIL

XCVIL

TABLE OF CONTENTS (continued)

Page

C. The Trial Court Did Not Err In Failing To Grant The

Challenge

THE TRIAL COURT’S PRE-PENALTY
PHASE CAUTIONARY ADMONITION DID
NOT PERMIT THE JURY TO PREJUDGE
THE PENALTY DECISION

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ERR IN
DENYING APPELLANT’S MOTION TO RE-
VOIR DIRE THE JURY BEFORE THE
PENALTY PHASE AS IT WAS BASED
SOLELY ON SPECULATION WHICH IS
ALSO THE ONLY BASIS OF HIS ASSERTION
OF PREJUDICE

THE LINGERING DOUBT INSTRUCTION
WAS NOT CONSTITUTIONALLY
DEFICIENT

THE TRIAL COURT’S INSTRUCTIONS DID
NOT LIMIT THE JURY’S CONSIDERATION
OF MITIGATION TO EVIDENCE OFFERED
BY THE DEFENSE

THERE IS NO REASONABLE LIKELIHOOD
THAT THE JURY APPLIED A GUILT PHASE
INSTRUCTION DESIGNED TO PREVENT
THE JURY’S CONSIDERATION OF
REACTIONS TO EVIDENCE AS
PRECLUDING GIVING MITIGATING
EFFECT TO APPELLANT’S GOOD
BEHAVIOR DURING TRIAL

APPELLANT FORFEITED HIS CHALLENGE
TO THE EXPERT WITNESS INSTRUCTION

XXiil

505

509

513

517

520

523



XCVIIL

XCIX.

CL

CIIL.

CIII.

TABLE OF CONTENTS (continued)

AND USE OF THE INSTRUCTION DID NOT
IMPROPERLY GIVE UNDUE STATURE TO
A PROSECUTION WITNESS

THE JURY INSTRUCTIONS DID NOT
MISLEAD THE JURY AS TO ITS
SENTENCING DECISION

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ERR IN
FAILING TO INSTRUCT THE JURY THAT
THERE WAS NO BURDEN OF PROOF ASTO
THE PENALTY DETERMINATION

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ERR IN
REFUSING TO INSTRUCT THE JURY TO
CONSIDER SYMPATHY FOR APPELLANT’S
FAMILY

THE TRIAL COURT’S SUPPLEMENTAL
INSTRUCTION IN RESPONSE TO A JURY

QUESTION DID NOT LIMIT THE JURY’S

CONSIDERATION OF MITIGATION

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ERR IN
REFUSING A DEFENSE-REQUESTED
INSTRUCTION WHICH PRECLUDED THE
JURY FROM CONSIDERING PREDICTIONS
OF FUTURE DANGEROUSNESS

THE TRIAL COURT’S RESPONSES TO THE
JURY’S INITIAL INDICATIONS OF
DEADLOCK AND QUESTIONS WERE
APPROPRIATE AND NOT COERCIVE

A. Factual Background

B. Analysis

XX1V

Page

525

527

531

533

535

538

541
541

545



CIV.

CV.

CVI.

CVIL

CVIIIL

TABLE OF CONTENTS (continued)

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT INVADE THE
SECRECY OF THE JURY’S
DELIBERATIONS OR PREJUDICE
APPELLANT WITH ITS SUPPLEMENTAL
INSTRUCTION '

A. Invading The Secrecy Of Deliberations
B. The Supplemental Instruction
C. Harmless

APPELLANT WAIVED HIS CHALLENGES
TO THE TRIAL COURT’S CONSIDERATION
OF ITS VIEW AND THE BAILIFF’S VIEW OF
THE JURY ROOM AND CONSIDERING
THOSE VIEWS IN DISCERNING THE
MEANING OF A JURY QUESTION DID NOT
VIOLATE ANY CONSTITUTIONAL RIGHT

THE TRIAL COURT’S SUPPLEMENTAL
INSTRUCTION DID NOT LIMIT THE JURY’S
CONSIDERATION OF GUILT PHASE
EVIDENCE IN ANY WAY OTHER THAN
PRECLUDING CONSIDERATION OF THE
GARCIA, STRANG, AND FISHERS
MURDERS

THE TRIAL COURT WAS NOT REQUIRED
TO HOLD A HEARING SIMPLY BECAUSE A
TRIAL JUROR ASKED TO BE EXCUSED
FOR A DAY TO ATTEND HER FATHER’S
FUNERAL

THE RECORD DOES NOT REBUT THE
PRESUMPTION THAT THE TRIAL COURT
ADVISED COUNSEL ABOUT THE JURY
NOTE AND, IN ANY CASE, ANY FAILURE
TO ADVISE COUNSEL WAS HARMLESS

XXV

Page

550
553
555

556

557

559

561

564



CI1X.

CX.

CXI.

CXII.

CXIII.

TABLE OF CONTENTS (continued)

BY FAILING TO TIMELY REQUEST THAT
THE TRIAL COURT REMOVE OR REDACT
GUILT PHASE EXHIBITS REFERENCING
THE STRANG, FISHER, AND GARCIA
MURDERS, APPELLANT FORFEITED HIS
CLAIM OF ERROR AND, THE CLAIM IS
WITHOUT MERIT IN LIGHT OF THE TRIAL
COURT’S ADMONITIONS TO THE JURY TO
NOT CONSIDER ANY EVIDENCE RELATED
TO THOSE MURDERS IN DELIBERATING
PENALTY

A. Forfeiture

APPELLANT’S CHALLENGES TO THE
TRIAL COURT’S PROCEDURE FOR
HANDLING JURY REQUESTS FOR
TESTIMONY DURING DELIBERATIONS
HAVE BEEN PREVIOUSLY ADDRESSED
AND SHOWN TO BE WITHOUT MERIT

APPELLANT’S CHALLENGE TO THE
TRIAL COURT’S ALLEGED FAILURE TO
INSTRUCT THE JURY ON THE PROPER
USE OF TRANSCRIPTS HAS BEEN
PREVIOUSLY ADDRESSED AND SHOWN
TO BE WITHOUT MERIT

APPELLANT FORFEITED HIS CLAIM OF
ERROR BY FAILING TO OBJECT AND
THERE WAS NO ERROR WHEN THE TRIAL
COURT SUBMITTED AN ANSWER TO A
JURY QUESTION TO THE JURY IN
WRITING WITHOUT ALSO READING IT

THE JURY DID NOT COMMIT
MISCONDUCT IN ASKING ABOUT THE

XX Vi

Page

567

569

571

572

572



TABLE OF CONTENTS (continued)
Page

CONSEQUENCES OF A DEADLOCK, THE
TRIAL COURT HAD NO DUTY TO INQUIRE,
AND THE TRIAL COURT PROPERLY
ANSWERED AND ADMONISHED THE
JURY 574

CXIV. APPELLANT’S CHALLENGE TO THE
TRIAL COURT’S ALLEGED FAILURE TO
INSTRUCT THE JURY ON THE SELECTION
DUTIES AND POWERS OF THE
FOREPERSON HAS BEEN PREVIOUSLY
ADDRESSED AND SHOWN TO BE
WITHOUT MERIT 576

CXV. THE FEW ERRORS IN APPELLANT’S TRIAL
WERE HARMLESS AND DID NOT
UNDERMINE THE RELIABILITY OF THE
DEATH JUDGMENT 577

CXVI. THIS COURT HAS CONSIDERED AND
REJECTED APPELLANT’S VARIOUS
CHALLENGES TO THE
CONSTITUTIONALITY OF CALIFORNIA’S
DEATH PENALTY LAW 577

CXVIL. THE FEW ERRORS IN APPELLANT’S TRIAL
WERE HARMLESS WHETHER EVEN WHEN
CONSIDERED CUMULATIVELY 579

CONCLUSION 580

XXVii



TABLE OF AUTHORITIES
Page
Cases

Allen v. United States

(1896) 164 U.S. 492

17 S.Ct. 154

41 L.Ed.2d 528 394, 548

Apprendi v. New Jersey

(2000) 530 U.S. 466

120 S.Ct. 2348

147 L.Ed.2d 435 578

Arizona v. Youngblood

(1988) 488 U.S. 51

109 S.Ct. 333

102 L.Ed.2d 281 153, 154, 156, 205, 20, 233

Ballard v. Superior Court
(1966) 64 Cal.2d 159 424

Barefoot v. Estelle

(1983) 463 U.S. 880

103 S.Ct. 3383

77 L.Ed.2d 1090 539

Bell v. Cone

(2002) 535 U.S. 685

122 S.Ct. 1843

152 L.Ed.2d 914 442

People v. Belmontes
(1988) 45 Cal.3d 744 209

Blackledge v. Perry

(1974) 417 U.S. 21

94 S.Ct. 2098

40 L.Ed.2d 628 132

XXViii



TABLE OF AUTHORITIES (continued)

Bordenkircher v. Hayes
(1978) 434 U.S. 357

98 S.Ct. 663

54 L.Ed.2d 604

Bowen v. State
(2001) 252 Ga.App. 382
556 S.E.2d 252

Boyde v. California
(1990) 494 U.S. 370
110 S.Ct. 1190

108 L.Ed.2d 316

Bradley v. Duncan
(9th Cir. 2002) 315 F.3d 1091

Buchanan v. Angelone
(1998) 522 U.S. 269
118 S.Ct. 757

139 L.Ed.2d 702

Caldwell v. Mississippi
(1985) 472 U.S. 320
105 S.Ct. 2633

86 L.Ed.2d 231

California v. Trombetta
(1984) 467 U.S. 479
104 S.Ct. 2528

81 L.Ed.2d 413

California v. Trombetta
(1984) 467 U.S. 479
104 S.Ct. 2528

81 L.Ed.2d 413

XX1iX

Page

132

211

358, 365, 367, 383,462, 518, 525

224

462

493, 496

74,127,129, 153, 155, 206

233



TABLE OF AUTHORITIES (continued)

Page

Catlin v. Union QOil Co.
(1916) 31 Cal.App. 597 324

Chambers v. Mississippi

(1973) 410 U.S. 284

93 S.Ct. 1038

35 L.Ed.2d 297 200

Conde v. Henry
(9th Cir. 1999) 198 F.3d 734 224

Cool v. United States

(1972) 409 U.S. 100

93 S.Ct. 354

34 L.Ed.2d 335 147, 148

Crawford v. Illinois

(2004) 541 U.S. 36

124 S.Ct. 1354

158 L.Ed.2d 177 326, 327

Crawford v. Washington

(2004) 541 U.S. 36

124 S.Ct. 1354

158 L.Ed.2d 177 558

Cuyler v. Sullivan

(1980) 446 U.S. 335

100 S.Ct. 1708

64 L.Ed.2d 333 451

Daubert v. Merrell Dow Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

(1993) 509 U.S. 579

- 113 S.Ct. 2786

125 L.Ed.2d 469 308, 309

XXX



TABLE OF AUTHORITIES (continued)

Page

Davis v. Alaska

(1974) 415 U.S. 308

39 L.Ed.2d 347

94 S.Ct. 1105 200, 209

Dawn D. v. Superior Court
(1998) 17 Cal.4th 932 337

Delaware v. Van Arsdall

(1986) 475 U.S. 673

89 L.Ed.2d 674

106 S.Ct. 1431 200, 209

DuBarry Internat., Inc. v. Southwest Forest Industries, Inc.
(1991) 231 Cal.App.3d 552 392

Dugar v. Happy Tiger Records, Inc.
(1974) 41 Cal.App.3d 811 162

Duren v. Missouri

(1979) 439 U.S. 357

99 S.Ct. 664

58 L.Ed.2d 579 75,77,78

Dyer v. Calderon
(9th Cir. 1998) 151 F.3d 970 506

Eddings v. Oklahoma
455 U.S. 104 (1982) 462

Estelle v. McGuire

(1991) 502 U.S. 62

112 S.Ct. 475

- 116 L.Ed.2d 385 349, 345, 358, 365, 366, 383, 521 527

First National Bank v. De Moulin
(1922) 56 Cal.App. 313 325, 326

XXX1



TABLE OF AUTHORITIES (continued)

Page

Franklin v. Lynaugh
487 U.S. 164 (1988) 462

Frye v. United States
(D.C. Cir. 1923) 293 F. 1013 168, 169, 308, 309

Garcia v. Superior Court
(1997) 14 Cal.4th 953 427

Gardner v. Florida

(1977) 430 U.S. 349

97 S.Ct. 1197

51 L.Ed.2d 393 463

Gilbert v. California

(1967) 388 U.S. 263

87 S.Ct. 1951

18 L.Ed.2d 1178 313

Goins v. Angelone
(4th Cir. 2000) 226 F.3d 312 463

Gray v. Klauser
(9th. Cir. 2002) 282 F.3d 633 148

Green v. Georgia

(1979) 442 U.S. 95

99 S.Ct. 2150

60 L.Ed.2d 738 200, 464

Hale v. Morgan
(1978) 22 Cal.3d 388 244

Hambarian v. Superior Court
(2002) 27 Cal.4th 826 230

Hovey v. Superior Court
(1980) 28 Cal.3d 1 412,413,418

XXXii



TABLE OF AUTHORITIES (continued)

Page
Hughes v. State
(Miss. 1999) 735 So.2d 238 248
In re Bower
(1985) 38 Cal.3d 865 133
In re Gay
(1988) 19 Cal.4th 771 560
In re Mendes
(1979) 23 Cal.3d 847 566
In re Sassounian
(1995) 9 Cal.4th 535
37 Cal.Rptr.2d 446
887 P.2d 527 214
In re Scott
(2003) 29 Cal.4th 783 442
Johnson v. Sublett
(9th Cir. 1995) 63 F.3d 926 248
Johnson v. Texas
509 U.S. 350 (1993) 462
Jurcoane v. Superior Court
(2001) 93 Cal.App.4th 886 326
Kyles v. Whitley
(1995) 514 U.S. 419
115 S.Ct. 1555
131 L.Ed.2d 490 214

LaMere v. Risley
(9th Cir. 1987) 827 F.2d 622 215

XXX1il



TABLE OF AUTHORITIES (continued)

Lesko v. Lehman
(3d Cir. 1991) 925 F.2d 1527

Lockett v. Ohio
(1978) 438 U.S. 586

Lockhart v. McCree
(1986) 476 U.S. 162
106 S.Ct. 1758
90 L.Ed.2d 137

Lucas v. Superior Court
(1988) 201 Cal.App.3d 149

Marriage of Weaver
(1990) 224 Cal.App.3d 478

Massaro v. United States
(2003) 538 U.S. 500

123 S.Ct. 1690

155 L.Ed.2d 714

Mathews v. United States
(1988) 485 U.S. 58

108 S.Ct. 883

99 L..Ed.2d 54

Mathres. Edlridge
(1976) 429 U.S. 319
96 S.Ct. 893

47 1L.Ed.2d 18

Mattco Forge, Inc. v. Arthur Anderson & Co.
(1997) 52 Cal.App.4th 820

XXX1V

Page

497

462

124

426

392

441

223

339

392



TABLE OF AUTHORITIES (continued)

Page

Medina v. California

(1992) 505 U.S. 437

120 L.Ed.2d 353

112 S.Ct. 2572 339

Michigan v. Lucas

(1991) 500 U.S. 145

114 L.Ed.2d 205

111 S.Ct. 1743 200

Naples Restaurant, Inc. v. Coberly Ford
(1968) 259 Cal.App.2d 881 123

Nebraska Press Ass’nv. Stuart

(1976) 427 U.S. 539

96 S.Ct. 2791

49 L.Ed.2d 683 84-87

Neder v. United States

(1999) 527 U.S. 1

119 S.Ct. 1827

144 1L..Ed.2d 35 87

North Carolina v. Pearce

(1969) 395 U.S. 711

89 S.Ct. 2072

23 L.Ed.2d 656 131,132

Palko v. Connecticut

302 U.S. 319

58 S.Ct. 140

82 L.Ed.2d 288 339

Penry v. Lynaugh

(1989) 492 U.S. 302

109 S.Ct. 2934

106 L.Ed.2d 256 462

XXXV



TABLE OF AUTHORITIES (continued)

People v. Williams
(1989) 48 Cal.3d 1112

People v. Albertson
(1944) 23 Cal.2d 550

People v. Alexander
(1985) 163 Cal.App.3d 1189

People v. Allison (1989)

People v. Alvarez
(1996) 14 Cal.4th 155

People v. Anderson
(2001) 25 Cal.4th 543

People v. Antommarchi
(N.Y. 1992) 604 N.E.2d 95

People v. Arias
(1996) 13 Cal.4th 92

People v. Ashmus
(1991) 54 Cal.3d 932

People v. Atkins
(1989) 210 Cal.App.3d 47

People v. Ayala

Page

50

125

76, 77,78

169

96, 262, 447, 510

161, 401

393

322, 344, 520, 526

469,471,474, 563

186

(2000) 23 Cal.4th 225 70, 168, 173, 174, 210, 284, 288, 404, 405, 491, 494

People v. Ayala
(2000) 24 Cal.4th 243

People v. Balderas
(1985) 41 Cal.3d 144

226, 227

96-98, 471, 570



TABLE OF AUTHORITIES (continued)

People v. Barnett
(1998) 17 Cal.4th 1044

People v. Barney
(1992) 8 Cal.App.4th 798

People v. Barton
(1995) 37 Cal.App.4th 709

People v. Bassett
(1968) 69 Cal.2d 122

People v. Bean
(1988) 46 Cal.3d 919

People v. Beeler
(1995) 9 Cal.4th 953

People v. Bell
(1989) 49 Cal.3d 502

People v. Belmontes
(1988) 45 Cal.3d 744

People v. Bemore
(2000) 22 Cal.4th 809

People v. Bender
(1945) 27 Cal.2d 164

People v. Bittaker
(1989) 48 Cal.3d 1046

People v. Black
(2003) 114 Cal.App.4th 830

People v. Blair
(2005) 36 Cal.4th 686

Page

570

293,294, 296

571

391

109

562, 563, 565, 566

78

452, 529

534

401

504

335, 339, 340

531

XXXVii



TABLE OF AUTHORITIES (continued)

People v. Bland
(2002) 28 Cal.4th 313

People v. Bloyd
(1987) 43 Cal.3d 333

People v. Bolden
(2002) 29 Cal.4th 515

People v. Bolin
(1998) 18 Cal.4th 297

People v. Bonillas
(1989) 48 Cal.3d 757

People v. Bonin
(1989) 47 Cal.3d 808

People v. Box
(2000) 23 Cal.4th 1153

People v. Boyette
(2002) 29 Cal.4th 381

People v. Bracey
(1994) 21 Cal.App.4th 1532

People v. Bradford
(1997) 14 Cal.4th 1005

People v. Bradford
(1997) 15 Cal.4th 1229

People v. Branch
(1996) 637 N.Y.S.2d 892
224 A.D.2d 926

Page

381,519

364, 365
223,293,294, 412,419
137,471, 484, 507
515, 570

180, 190

404-406, 573
224{225,499,506
132

405, 516

96-98, 103, 104, 106, 109-112, 144

XXXViii

228



TABLE OF AUTHORITIES (continued)

People v. Brandon
(1995) 32 Cal.App.4th 1033

People v. Breaux
(1991) 1 Cal.4th 281

People v. Brown
(1996) 42 Cal.App.4th 461

People v. Brown
(2003) 31 Cal.4th 518

People v. Buford
(1982) 132 Cal.App.3d 288

People v. Burgener
(2003) 29 Cal.4th 833

People v. Cain
(1995) 10 Cal.4th 1

People v. Carpenter
(1997) 15 Cal.4th 312

People v. Carpenter
(1999) 21 Cal.4th 1016

People v. Carroll
(1947) 79 Cal.App.2d 146

People v. Carter
(2005) 36 Cal.4th 1114

~ People v. Carter
(2003) 30 Cal.4th at p. 1215

People v. Cash
(2002) 28 Cal.4th 703

Page

241, 290

546

244

199, 322, 323, 401, 430, 530

76,77

75, 76, 80, 421, 462, 563, 575

226

113, 120, 124, 141, 160, 303, 345, 349, 480

209, 211, 220, 240, 245

401

103, 108

360, 565

420, 421

XXX1X



TABLE OF AUTHORITIES (continued)

People v. Catlin
(2001) 26 Cal.4th 81

People v. Champion
(1995) 9 Cal.4th 879

People v. Clair
supra, 2 Cal.4th at p. 663

People v. Cleveland
(2004) 32 Cal.4th 704

People v. Coddington
(2000) 23 Cal.4th 529

People v. Cook
(1975) 13 Cal.3d 663

People v. Cooper
(1991) 53 Cal.3d 771

People v. Cox
(2003) 30 Cal.4th at p. 963

People v. Crew
(2003) 31 Cal.4th 822

People v. Crittenden
(1994) 9 Cal.4th 83

People v. Cuccia
(2002) 97 Cal.App.4th 785

People v. Cudjo
(1993) 6 Cal.4th 585

People v. Cummings
(1993) 4 Cal.4th 1233

x1

Page

405

471

383

494

184, 471

452

156

195, 403, 451-454, 481

498

107

482

201

97, 109, 118, 126



TABLE OF AUTHORITIES (continued)

Page

People v. Cunningham
(2001) 25 Cal.4th 926 232,238, 240,242,244, 247,251,423, 562, 577

People v. Davenport
(1995) 11 Cal.4th 1171 73

People v. Davis
(1994) 7 Cal.4th 797 80

People v. Davis
(1995) 10 Cal.4th 463 489, 516, 575

People v. Dell
(1991) 232 Cal.App.3d 248 566

People v. Dennis
(1998) 17 Cal.4th 468 326, 546

People v. DeSantis
(1992) 2 Cal.4th 1198 80

People v. Dickey
(2005) 35 Cal.4th 884 479

People v. Dickey
(2005) 26 Cal.4th 967 480

People v. Downey
(2000) 82 Cal.App.4th 899 73

People v. Dunkle
(2005) 36 Cal.4th 861 577,578

People v. Duvall
1995) 9 Cal.4th 464 432
(

People v. Earp
(1999) 20 Cal.4th 826 223

xli



TABLE OF AUTHORITIES (continued)

People v. Easley
(1988) 46 Cal.3d 712

People v. Echievarria
(1992) 11 Cal.App.4th 444

People v. Edwards
(1991) 54 Cal.3d 787

People v. England
(2000) 83 Cal.App.4th 772

People v. Engleman
(2002) 28 Cal.4th 436

People v. Ewoldt
(1994) 7 Cal.4th 380

People v. Farnam
(2002) 28 Cal.4th 107

People v. Fauber
(1992) 2 Cal.4th 792

People v. Feagin
(1995) 34 Cal.App.4th 1427

People v. Feinberg
(1997) 51 Cal.App.4th 1566

People v. Flannel
(1979) 25 Cal.3d 668

People v. Frazer
(1999) 21 Cal.4th 737

People v. Freeman
(1994) 8 Cal.4th 450

xlii

Page

452

346, 347

133

80

406, 553, 554, 557

98, 144

172, 306, 307, 354, 432, 526

233

406

370

230

337, 340

378, 380, 397



TABLE OF AUTHORITIES (continued)

People v. Frye

Page

(1998) 18 Cal.4th 894 115, 119, 137,330, 332, 343, 344, 369, 373, 452, 505

People v. Gainer
(1977) 10 Cal.3d 835

People v. Gallegos
(1990) 52 Cal.3d 115

People v. Garceau
(1993) 6 Cal.4th 140

People v. Garcia
(1988) 201 Cal.App.3d 324

People v. Gentry
(1968) 257 Cal.App.2d 607

People v. Goldstein
(1956) 139 Cal.App.2d 146

People v. Gordon
(1973) 10 Cal.3d 460

People v. Gould
(1960) 54 Cal.2d 621

People v. Gray
(2005) 37 Cal.4th 168

People v. Green
(2004) 33 Cal.4th 536

People v. Guiuan
(1998) 18 Cal.4th 558

People v. Gurule
(2002) 28 Cal.4th 557

xliii

519, 574

547

169

183

159, 166

362

362

342

401

577,578

230

343

350, 351, 391, 576



TABLE OF AUTHORITIES (continued)

People v. Gutierrez
(2002) 28 Cal.4th 1083

People v. Hall
(1986) 41 Cal.3d 826

People v. Hampton
(1999) 73 Cal.App.4th 710

People v. Harris
(1984) 36 Cal.3d 36

People v. Harris
(1989) 47 Cal.3d 1047

People v. Harris
(1992) 10 Cal.App.4th 672

People v. Harrison
(2005) 35 Cal.4th 208

People v. Hart
(1999) 20 Cal.4th 546

People v. Haston
(1986) 69 Cal.2d 233

People v. Hayes
(1990) 52 Cal.3d 577

People v. Heard
(2003) 31 Cal.4th 946

People v. Hedgecock
(1990) 51 Cal.3d 395

People v. Henderson
(1990) 225 Cal.App.3d 1129

Page

104, 105, 113, 224

317-319

347

77

284

406

327, 347

569, 576

107

533

183,184, 195

553

80

xliv



TABLE OF AUTHORITIES (continued)

People v. Hernandez
(1999) 71 Cal. App.4th 417

People v. Hernandez
(2003) 30 Cal.4th 835

People v. Herrera
(2000) 83 Cal.App.4th 46

People v. Hill
(1992) 3 Cal.4th 959

People v. Hill
(1998) 17 Cal.4th 800

People v. Hillhouse
(2002) 27 Cal.4th 469

People v. Hines
(1997) 15 Cal.4th 997

People v. Hitch
(1974) 12 Cal.3d 641

People v. Holt
(1997) 15 Cal.4th 619

People v. Horning
(2004) 34 Cal.4th 871

People v. Horton
(1995) 11 Cal.4th 1068

People v. Howard
(1992) 1 Cal.4th 1132

People v. Huber
(1986) 181 Cal.App.3d 601

Page

75

73,430

243

112, 146

228, 382, 489, 558

531

576

74

226, 365, 383, 521, 527

578

452, 481

70, 75

108

xlv



TABLE OF AUTHORITIES (continued)

People v. Hughes
(2002) 27 Cal.4th 287

People v. Hunter
(1989) 49 Cal.3d 957

People v. Jackson
(1996) 13 Cal.4th 1164

People v. Jenkins
(2000) 22 Cal.4th 900

People v. Jennings
(2000) 22 Cal.4th 900

People v. Johnson
(1971) 21 Cal.App.3d 235

People v. Johnson
(1989) 47 Cal.3d 1194

People v. Johnson
(1992) 3 Cal.4th 1183

People v. Johnson
(1993) 6 Cal4th 1

People v. Jones

(1984) 151 Cal.App.3d 1027

People v. Jones
(1996) 13 Cal.4th 535

People v. Jones
(1997) 15 Cal.4th 119

People v. Jones
(2003) 30 Cal.4th 1084

Page

168, 363, 490, 494, 576

346

66, 70, 71, 225

66, 72, 112, 146, 149, 150, 420, 421, 516

566

113,120

155

240, 241, 245, 510

146

76, 78, 498, 539

168, 496

489, 491, 500, 539, 561

254-256

xlvi



TABLE OF AUTHORITIES (continued)

Page

People v. Kaurish
(1990) 52 Cal.3d 648 508

People v. Kelly
(1976) 17 Cal.3d 24 73-75, 115,119, 167-169, 173-175, 182, 187, 188,

192, 202
People v. Kennedy
al.4t
(2005) 36 Cal.4th 595 238
People v. Kipp
(1998) 18 Cal.4th 349 399
People v. Kipp
(2001) 26 Cal.4th 1100 290
People v. Kirkpatrick
(1994) 7 Cal.4th 988 504, 505
People v. Koontz
(2002) 27 Cal.4th 1041 105, 399
People v. Kraft
(2000) 23 Cal.4th 978 97,578
People v. Lawley
2002) 27 Cal.4th 102 201, 263
(
People v. Leahy
(1994) 8 Cal.4th 587 170, 308
People v. Lenart
(2004) 32 Cal.4th 1107 490

'People v. Lewis
(2001) 26 Cal.4th 334 140, 209, 210, 290, 292, 362, 364, 366, 387, 408
521,527,578

xlvii



TABLE OF AUTHORITIES (continued)

People v. Linwood
(2003) 105 Cal.App.4th 59

People v. Lucas
(1995) 12 Cal.4th 415

People v. Lucero
(1988) 44 Cal.3d 1006

People v. Mabibi
(2001) 92 Cal.App.4th 654

People v. Malbrough
-~ (1961) 55 Cal.2d 249

People v. Marshall
(1996) 13 Cal.4th 799

People v. Martin
(2000) 78 Cal.App.4th 1107

People v. Mason
(1991) 52 Cal.3d 909

People v. Massie
(1998) 19 Cal.4th 550

People v. Mattson
(1990) 50 Cal.3d 826

People v. Maury
(2003) 30 Cal.4th 342

 People v. Mayfield
(1997) 14 Cal.4th 668

People v. McCoy
(1995) 40 Cal.App.4th 778

Page

137

116,117,119, 326, 328, 352, 504

223

390-392

401

158-160

140

96,97, 111, 243

453, 455

75

96, 98, 371, 461

226

80

xlviii



TABLE OF AUTHORITIES (continued)

Page

People v. McDonald
(1984) 37 Cal.3d 351 ’ 253-258
People v. McElheny
(1982) 137 Cal.App.3d 396 387
People v. McPeters
(1992) 2 Cal.4th 1148 66
People v. Medina
(1990) 51 Cal.3d 870 154, 155
People v. Mendoza
(1998) 18 Cal.4th 1114 359
People v. Mendoza
(2000) 24 Cal.4th 130 148, 360
People v. Mendoza-Tello _
(1997) 15 Cal.4th 264 459
People v. Meneley
(1972) 29 Cal.App.3d 41 98
People v. Michaels
(2002) 28 Cal.4th 486 133, 540
People v. Miller
(1990) 50 Cal.3d 954 98, 144
People v. Millwee
(1998) 18 Cal.4th 96 231, 500
People v. Mincey v

~ (1992) 2 Cal.4th 408 148, 554
People v. Miron
(1989) 210 Cal.App.3d 580 324

xlix



TABLE OF AUTHORITIES (continued)

People v. Mixon
(1990) 225 Cal.App.3d 1471

People v. Moore
(1954) 43 Cal.2d 517

People v. Moore
(2002) 96 Cal.App.4th 1105

People v. Morales
(1989) 48 Cal.3d 527

People v. Morganti
(1996) 43 Cal.App.4th 643

People v. Morris
(1991) 53 Cal.3d 152

People v. Morrison
(2004) 34 Cal.4th 698

People v. Murphy
(1973) 35 Cal.App.3d 905

People v. Murtishaw
(1981) 29 Cal.3d 733

People v. Nakahara
(2003) 30 Cal.4th 705

People v. Neely
(1993) 6 Cal.4th 877

~ People v. Nicolaus
(1991) 54 Cal.4th 551

People v. Noguera
(1992) 4 Cal.4th 599

Page

387

147

547, 548

77,78, 469, 471

305, 306

165, 187, 188

307,577,578

406

539

371

168

80

488, 494



TABLE OF AUTHORITIES (continued)

People v. Ochoa
(1988) 19 Cal.4th 353

People v. Ochoa
(2001) 26 Cal.4th 398

People v. Page
(1991) 2 Cal.App.4th 161

People v. Panah
(2005) 35 Cal.4th 395

People v. Phillips
(2000) 22 Cal.4th 226

People v. Pinholster
(1992) 1 Cal.4th 865

People v. Pitts
(1990) 223 Cal.App.3d 606

People v. Pizarro
(2003) 110 Cal.App.4th 530

People v. Plasencia
(1985) 168 Cal.App.3d 546

People v. Price
(1991) 1 Cal.4th 324

People v. Price
(2001) 25 Cal.4th 1046

People v. Pride
(1992) 3 Cal.4th 195

People v. Prieto
(2003) 30 Cal.4th 226

Page

238, 245, 534, 535

76, 81, 95-97

231

429

199, 322, 323

500

346

296

255-257

546, 558

558

161, 168

174

li



TABLE OF AUTHORITIES (continued)

People v. Proctor
(1992) 4 Cal.4th 499

People v. Raley
(1992) 2 Cal.4th 870

People v. Ramos
(1997) 15 Cal.4th 1133

People v. Reilly
(1987) 196 Cal.App.3d 1127

People v. Reliford
(2003) 29 Cal.4th 1007

People v. Rhoades
(2001) 93 Cal.App.4th 1122

People v. Rich
(1988) 45 Cal.3d 1036

People v. Riel
(2000) 22 Cal.4th 1153

People v. Rincon-Pineda
(1975) 14 Cal.3d 864

People v. Robertson
(1982) 33 Cal.3d 21

People v. Roder
(1983) 33 Cal.3d 491

People v. Rodrigues
(1994) 8 Cal.4th 1060

People v. Rodriguez
(2002) 28 Cal.4th 543

Page

137,188

322,323

76, 81, 123, 125,176, 178, 179, 258

293

226, 510, 525

405

418, 546

294, 305, 306

223

515

358

135, 354, 382, 387, 526, 571

382, 387

lii



TABLE OF AUTHORITIES (continued)

People v. Roldan
(2005) 35 Cal.4th 646

People v. Romero
(1994) 8 Cal.4th 728

People v. Rose
(1996) 46 Cal.App.4th 257

People v. Rowland
(1992) 4 Cal.4th 238

People v. Roybal
(1998) 19 Cal.4th 481

People v. Ruiz
(1988) 44 Cal.3d 589

People v. Saddler
(1979) 24 Cal.3d 671

People v. Sakarias
(2000) 22 Cal.4th 596

People v. Salas
(1976) 58 Cal.App.3d 460

People v. Samayoa
(1997) 15 Cal.4th 795

People v. Sanchez
(1995) 12 Cal.4th 1

People v. Sanders
(1995) 11 Cal.4th 475

People v. Sanders
(1990) 51 Cal.3d at p. 494

liii

Page

573

432

571

208

153,205, 490, 492, 493

124, 125

224,390

168

135

531, 532

451

136

81



TABLE OF AUTHORITIES (continued)

People v. Sandoval
(1992) 4 Cal.4th 155

People v. Sapp
(2003) 31 Cal.4th 240

People v. Saunders
(1993) 5 Cal.4th 580

Peaple v. Scott
(1997) 15 Cal.4th 1188

People v. Seaton
(2001) 26 Cal.4th 598

People v. Shea
(1995) 39 Cal.App.4th 1257

People v. Sims
(1993) 5 Cal.4th 405

People v. Sinohui
(2002) 28 Cal.4th 205

People v. Slaughter
(2002) 27 Cal.4th 1187

People v. Smith
(2003) 30 Cal.4th 581

People v. Smithey
(1999) 20 Cal.4th 936

People v. Snow
(2003) 30 Cal.4th 43

People v. Stanley
(1995) 10 Cal.4th 764

liv

Page

112, 546

113

504

498

214,221

401

498, 500

326

136,493

291

140

230, 279, 354, 520

146, 457



TABLE OF AUTHORITIES (continued)

People v. Stansbury
(1993) 4 Cal.4th 1017

People v. Staten
(2000) 24 Cal.4th 434

People v. Stewart
(2004) 33 Cal.4th 425

People v. Stoll
(1989) 49 Cal.3d 1136

People v. Teitelbaum
(1958) 163 Cal.App.2d 184

People v. Tewksbury
(1976) 15 Cal.3d 953

People v. Thompson
(1988) 45 Cal.3d 86

People v. Thornton
(1974) 11 Cal.3d 738

People v. Turner
(1994) 8 Cal.4th 137

People v. Valdez
(2004) 32 Cal.4th 73

People v. Venegas
(1998) 18 Cal.4th 47

People v. Victor
(1984) 62 N.Y.2d 374
465 N.E.2d 817

Page

77, 81

364

507, 508

74, 171, 184, 188
406

344

118

107-109, 230

180, 190, 193, 231

113,291

172, 293-297, 299, 300, 302-304, 353

lv

228



TABLE OF AUTHORITIES (continued)

People v. Wade
(1995) 39 Cal.App.4th 1487

People v. Waidla
(2000) 22 Cal.4th 690

People v. Ward
(2005) 36 Cal.4th 186

People v. Wash
(1993) 6 Cal.4th 215

People v. Watson
(1956) 46 Cal.2d 818
People v. Weaver

(2001) 26 Cal.4th 876

People v. Webb
(1993) 6 Cal.4th 494

People v. Welch
(1999) 20 Cal.4th 701

People v. Wharton
(1991) 53 Cal.3d 522

People v. Wheeler
(1978) 22 Cal.3d 258

People v. Wheeler
(1992) 4 Cal.4th 284

People v. Wilkinson
(2004) 33 Cal.4th 821

Ivi

Page

370

576

342,343

244, 490

137, 141, 145, 149, 159, 160,
174, 279, 343, 348, 360

307,479

172, 173

377,493

224,376

66

277,284

461, 463



TABLE OF AUTHORITIES (continued)

People v. Williams
(1997) 16 Cal.4th 153

People v. Wilson
(2005) 36 Cal.4th 309

People v. Woodward
(1992) 4 Cal.4th 376

People v. Wrest
(1992) 3 Cal.4th 1088

People v. Wright
(1985) 39 Cal.3d 576

People v. Wright
(1988) 45 Cal.3d 1126

People v. Yeoman
(2003) 31 Cal.4th 93

People v. Yorba
(1989) 209 Cal.App.3d 1017

People v. Yrigoyen
(1955) 45 Cal.2d 46

People v. Zamora
(1980) 28 Cal.3d 88

Press-Enterprise Co. v. Superior Court of Cal.
(1984) 464 U.S. 501

104 S.Ct. 819
78 L.Ed.2d 629

Price v. Superior Court
(2001) 25 Cal.4th 1046

lvii

Page

210, 233

505

405, 406

490

278

136, 260

238, 241, 245, 317-319

305, 306

401

156

84

146



TABLE OF AUTHORITIES (continued)

Quality Wash Group V, Inc. v. Hallak
(1996) 50 Cal.App.4th 1687

Rich v. Calderon
(9th Cir. 1999) 187 F.3d 1064

Richardson v. Marsh
(1987) 481 U.S. 200
107 S.Ct. 1702
21195 L.Ed.2d 176

Riley v. Deeds
(9th Cir. 1995) 56 F.3d 1117

Riley v. Payne
(9th Cir. 2003) 352 F.3d 1313

Rochin v. California
(1952) 342 U.S. 165
72 S.Ct. 205
96 L.Ed. 183

Rock v. Arkansas
(1987) 483 U.S. 44
107 S.Ct. 2704

97 L.Ed.2d 37

Rosales-Lopez v. United States
(1981) 451 U.S. 182

101 S.Ct. 1629

68 L.Ed.2d 22

Roscoe Moss Co. v. Jenkins
(1942) 55 Cal.App.2d 369

lviii

Page

162

76

112

405

441

338

200

420

350



TABLE OF AUTHORITIES (continued)

Page

Ross v. Moffitt

(1974) 417 U.S. 600

94 S.Ct. 2437

41 L.Ed.2d 341 455

Ross v. Oklahoma

(1988) 487 U.S. 81

108 S.Ct. 2273

101 L.Ed.2d 80 505

Rupe v. Wood _
(9th Cir. 1996) 93 F.3d 1434 462

Schad v. Arizona

(1991) 501 U.S. 624

111 S.Ct. 2491

115 L.Ed.2d 555 150

Skipper v. South Carolina

(1986) 476 U.S. 1

106 S.Ct. 1669

90 L.Ed.2d 1 464

Smith v. Robbins

(2002) 528 U.S. 259

120 S.Ct. 746 :

145 L.Ed.2d 756 458

Spann v. State
(Fla. 2003) 857 So.2d 845 169

Spottiswood v. Weir
(1889) 80 Cal. 448 169, 185, 186

State v. Mak

(Wash. 1986) 718 P.2d 407
105 Wash.2d 692 411

lix



TABLE OF AUTHORITIES (continued)

Page

State v. Norris
(Kan. 1985) 10 Kan.App.2d 397 408

State v. Roscoe
(1984) 145 Ariz. 212
700 P.2d 1312 249

State v. Stewart
(1978) 162 N.J. Super. 96
392 A.2d 234 497

Stone v. New England Ins. Co.
(1995) 33 Cal.App.4th 1175 392

Strickland v. Washington

(1984) 466 U.S. 668

104 S.Ct. 2052

80 L.Ed.2d 674 440, 441, 458

Taylor v. lllinois

(1988) 484 U.S. 400

108 S.Ct. 646

98 L.Ed.2d 798 200

Taylor v. Louisiana

(1975) 419 U.S. 522

95 S.Ct. 692

42 L.Ed.2d 690 66

Twiggs v. Superior Court
(1983) 34 Cal.3d 360 133

U.S. v. Sanchez
(9th Cir. 1999) 176 F.3d 1214 496

United States v. Amabile
(7th Cir. 1968) 395 F.2d 47 211

Ix



TABLE OF AUTHORITIES (continued)

Page

United States v. Davenport
(9th Cir. 1985) 753 F.2d 1460 215

United States v. Elmore
(4th Cir. 1970) 423 F.2d 775 215, 508

United States v. Goodwin

(1982) 457 U.S. 368

102 S. Ct. 2485

73 L.Ed.2d 74 131, 132

United States v. Lane

(1986) 474 U.S. 438

106 S.Ct. 725

88 L.Ed.2d 814 113

United States v. Owens

(1988) 484 U.S. 554

108 S.Ct. 838

98 L.Ed.2d 951 232

United States v. Pine
(3d. Cir. 1979) 609 F.2d 106 331

United States v. Rodgers
(6th Cir. 1997) 109 F.3d 1138 409

United States v. Salerno

(1987) 481 U.S. 739

95 L.Ed.2d 697

107 S.Ct. 2095 339

United States v. Scheffer

(1998) 523 U.S. 303

118 S.Ct. 1261

140 L.Ed.2d 413 461

Ixi



TABLE OF AUTHORITIES (continued)

United States v. Schilleci
(5th Cir. 1977) 545 F.2d 519

United States v. Veltmann
(11th Cir. 1993) 6 F.3d 1483

United States v. Wade
(1967) 388 U.S. 218
87 S.Ct. 1926

18 L.Ed.2d 1149

Victor v. Nebraska
(1994) 511 US. 1
114 S.Ct. 1239
127 L.Ed.2d 583

Wainwright v. Witt
(1985) 469 U.S. 412
105 S.Ct. 844

83 L.Ed.2d 841

Wardius v. Oregon
(1973) 412 U.S. 470
93 S.Ct. 2208

37 L.Ed.2d 82

Washington v. Glucksberg
(1997) 521 U.S. 702

117 S.Ct. 2258

138 L.Ed.2d 772

Washington v. Texas
(1967) 388 U.S. 14
87 S.Ct. 1920

18 L.Ed.2d 1019

Wheeler v. United States
(1st Cir. 1965) 351 F.2d 946

Ixi1

Page

408

334

310-313

358, 378, 379, 383, 396, 397

505, 508

75

337, 339, 340

200

211



TABLE OF AUTHORITIES (continued)

Page
 White v. Illlinois
(1992) 502 U.S. 346
112 S.Ct. 736
116 L.Ed.2d 848 326
Williams v. Superior Court
(1989) 49 Cal.3d 736 66
Wood v. Georgia
(1981) 450 U.S. 261
101 S.Ct. 1097
67 L.Ed.2d 220 452,453
Constitutional Provisions
California Constitution
art. I, § 16 66
art. I, § 28, subd. (d) 118
art. I, § 29 336
art. VI, § 13 343
art. VI, § 18 336, 337
United States Constitution
First Amendment 84, 85
Sixth Amendment 66, 75, 85, 209, 310, 312, 314, 326, 327, 328,
330, 558
Eighth Amendment ' 236, 244, 504
Fourteenth Amendment 160, 338
Statutes
Code Civil Procedure
§ 170 64, 66, 72, 73
§170.1 428
§ 170.1, subd. (a)(6)(C) 429
§ 170.3, subd. (b)(3) 64
§ 170.3, subd. (d) 430

Ixiii



TABLE OF AUTHORITIES (continued)

Page
§ 173.3, subd. (b)(4) 64
§ 203 81
§ 204 81
§ 1920b 162
§ 1943 194
§ 1944 169

Evidence Code

§ 250 158, 195
§ 351.1 460

§352 117,118,174-176, 182, 184, 185, 187, 188, 195, 256, 278,
279, 281, 284, 290, 317, 321

§ 353 187, 188, 232, 569
§ 353, subd. (a) 161, 165
§ 354 187,291, 468
§ 354, subd. (a) 116
§ 403, subd. (a)(3) 158
§ 403 116,118,119, 159, 160, 350
§ 403, subd. (a) 116
§ 403, subd. (c)(1) 142, 160, 193, 203
§ 406 116
§ 413 156
§ 520 578
§ 664 107
§ 720 122
§ 720, subd. (a) 123
§ 790 288
§ 664 158, 565
§ 782 118
§ 785 445
§ 787 194,283, 284
§ 800 194, 263, 324
§ 801 73,122,256
§ 801, subd. (a) 183
§ 970 325,326
§ 971 325
§ 801 308
§ 1103 118

Ixiv



TABLE OF AUTHORITIES (continued)

§ 1240, subd. (b)
§ 1416
§ 1417
§ 1500
§ 1101, subd. (a)
§ 1101, subd. (b)
§ 1103, subd. (a)
§ 1240
§ 1400
§ 1416
§ 1417
§ 1418
§ 1500
§ 1511
§ 1550
§ 1551

Government Code
§ 100

Penal Code
§ 187
§ 190.2, subd. (a)(3)
§ 190.2, subd. (a)(17)(ii)
§ 190.3
§ 190.3, subd. (b)
§ 190.4, subd. (b)
§ 207
§ 207, subd. (a)
§ 245, subd. (a)
§ 261
§ 264
§ 654
§ 667, subd. (a)
§ 684
§ 954
§ 977

Page

322

170

170

163

277

98

277,278

198, 322, 324

158

170, 192-195, 200, 203
170, 173

167, 169, 170, 182, 194, 203
163, 166

186

162, 163

161-164

335,336

1-5
2-6

2

130, 515

515

543

433

1,3,5

433

433

433

7

2-6

335, 336, 337
88, 95, 96, 98
479

Ixv



TABLE OF AUTHORITIES (continued)

§ 995

§ 1096

§ 1111

§ 1138

§ 1138.5

§ 1424, subd. (a)(1)
§ 12022

§ 12022, subd. (b)
§ 12022.7

Stats. 1965, c. 299, § 2
Stats. 2002, c. 124 (A.B. 2033), § 2

Court Rules

California Rules of Court
rule 25

Other Authorities

1 Witkin, Cal. Evidence
(4th ed. 2000) Opinion Rule, § 1

1 Witkin, Cal. Evidence, Opinion Evidence, § 29
1 Witkin, Cal. Evidence (4th ed. 2000)

2 Witkin, Cal. Evidence
(3d ed. 1986) Documentary Evidence, § 951

3 Witkin, Cal. Evidence
Presentation at Trial, § 52

7 Wigmore, Evidence
(3d ed. 1940) § 2011

Black’s Law Dictionary (8th ed. 2004) 597

Ixvi

Page

2
381

342, 344

402, 404, 554, 573
404

229

434

2-5

2,3,6

163
163

455

263
183

324

162-164, 193

117,119,120

180

571



TABLE OF AUTHORITIES (continued)

Page
Cal. Law Revision Comm. com.,
Deerings Ann. Evid. Code, § 403 193-195, 203
BAIJI
No. 2.62 391
CALIJIC
No. 2.00 357, 361
No. 2.01
No. 2.02 398, 400
No. 2.02 135
No. 2.03 222,224
No. 2.06 137
No. 2.12 375
No. 2.17 137
No. 2.20 346, 347, 371, 375
No. 2.21.1 374
No.2.21.2 370, 374
No. 2.22 370, 374
No. 2.23 374
No. 2.27
No. 2.50 135, 138, 142, 145
No. 2.51 105
No. 2.52 137
No. 2.61 382
No. 2.62 424
No. 2.90 381, 388, 391, 393, 395, 396
No. 3.11 242,243
No. 3.18 242,243
No. 8.88 377
Deerings Ann. Cal. Const., Foreword 336
Uniform Photographic Copies of Business
and Public Records as Evidence Act 163

Ixvii



TABLE OF AUTHORITIES (continued)
Page

Webster’s Third New International
Dictionary, Unabridged (2002) 186, 195

Ixviii



IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA, DEATH
Plaintiff and Respondent, PENALTY
v 8012279
DAVID ALLEN LUCAS,

Defendant and Appellant.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE
INTRODUCTION

Appellant’s convictions of multiple counts of murder and attempted
murder and his sentence of death began with the filing of two separate cases
which were ultimately consolidated for trial. The procedural history of each
case, CR 73093 and CR 75195, is described under its separate heading up to the
consolidation order, the procedural history of both cases is then jointly

described following consolidation.

CR 73093

On September 3, 1985, the District Attorney of San Diego County filed

an amended information in case number CR 73093, charging appellant with:

Count One - the kidnaping of Jodie Santiago (Pen. Code, § 207, subd. (a));

Count Two - the attempted murder of Jodie Santiago (Pen. Code, §§ 664,

187); _

Count Three - the murder of Rhonda Strang (Pen. Code, § 187);

Count Four - the murder of Amber Fisher (Pen. Code, § 187);

Count Five - the kidnaping of Anne Swanke (Pen. Code, § 207, subd. (a));

and



Count Six - the murder of Anne Swanke (Pen. Code, § 187).

It was alleged that appellant used a knife in the commission of all the
charged offenses (Pen. Code, § 12022, subd. (b)) and intentionally inflicted
great bodily injury in the commission of the kidnaping and the attempted
murder offenses (Pen. Code, § 12022.7). Special circumstances of murder in
the commission of kidnaping (Pen. Code, § 190.2, subd. (a)(17)(ii)) and
multiple murder (Pen. Code, § 190.2, subd. (a)(3)) were alleged. It was also
alleged that appellant had previously been convicted of a serious felony (Pen.
Code, § 667, subd. (a)) and had three prior felony convictions. (1 CT 219-221.)

Appellant was arraigned on the amended information and entered pleas
of not guilty to the charges and denied the allegations. (22 CT 4613.)

On December 23, 1985, the District Attorney filed a notice of
aggravating evidence. (6 CT 1263-1267.)

On January 8, 1986, appellant’s motion to dismiss (Pen. Code, § 995)
was denied. At that time the prior conviction allegations, with the exception of
the serious felony conviction allegation, were struck. (22 CT 4625-4626.)

On May 15, 1986, appellant’s motion to change venue (7 CT 1452-
1592) was denied. (22 CT 4714-4715.) '

On July 8, 1986, the District Attorney filed a first amended notice of
aggravating evidence. (8 CT 1697-1700, 1709-1712; 22 CT 4721-4722.) On
November 3, 1986, a second amended notice of aggravating evidence was filed.
(11 CT 2261-2263.)

On December 8, 1986, appellant’s motion to suppress (4 CT 770-844)
was denied. (22 CT 4800.)

On February 9, 1987, the case (along with CR 75195) was assigned to

Judge Hammes. (23 CT 4808,4811-4812.) On February 17, 1987, the parties
entered a stipulation to the assignment of Judge Hammes. (The stipulation also

covered CR 75195.) (13 CT 2722-2726; 23 CT 4814.)



On May 13, 1987, a second amended information was filed in case
73093, charging appellant with:

Count One - the kidnaping of Jodie Santiago (Pen. Code, § 207, subd. (a));
Count Two - the attempted murder of Jodie Santiago (Pen. Code, § 664,
187);

Count Three - the murder of Rhonda Strang (Pen. Code, § 187);

Count Four - the murder of Amber Fisher (Pen. Code, § 187);

Count Five - the kidnaping of Anne Swanke (Pen. Code, § 207, subd. (a));
and

Count Six - the murder of Anne Swanke (Pen. Code, § 187).

It was alleged that appellant used a knife in the commission of all the
charged offenses (Pen. Code, § 12022, subd. (b)) and personally inflicted great
bodily injury in the commission of the kidnaping and attempted murder
offenses (Pen. Code, § 12022.7). A multiple murder special circumstance (Pen.
Code, § 190.2, subd. (a)(3)) was alleged. It was also alleged that appellant had
previously been convicted of rape, a serious felony (Pen. Code, § 667, subd.
(a)). (16 CT 3452-3457; 23 CT 4895-4896.)"

On June 6, 1988, the prosecution’s motion to consolidate the case with

CR 75195 (43 CT 9350-9353) was granted. (24 CT 5211-5212.)

CR 75195

On August 1, 1985, the District Attorney of San Diego County filed an
information charging appellant with:
Count One - the murder of Suzanne Jacobs (Pen. Code, § 187);
Count Two - the murder of Colin Jacobs (Pen. Code, § 187); and

1. This amended information deleted the kidnaping-felony murder
special circumstance and deleted the prior conviction allegations, with the
exception of the serious felony prior conviction allegation.
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Count Three - the murder of Gayle Garcia (Pen. Code, § 187).

It was alleged that appellant used a knife in the commission of all three
murders (Pen. Code, § 12022, subd. (b)). A multiple murder special
circumstance (Pen. Code, § 190.2, subd. (a)(3)) was alleged. It was also alleged
that appellant had previously been convicted of a serious felony (Pen. Code, §
667, subd. (a)) and had three prior felony convictions. (27 CT 5744-5745.)
Appellant entered a plea of not guilty to the charges. (68 CT 15029.)

On January 28, 1986, appellant’s motion to dismiss (Pen. Code, § 995)
was heard and denied. (68 CT 15034-15045.) On May 15, 1986, appellant’s
motion to change venue was denied. (68 CT 15137-15138.)

On July 7, 1986, the District Attorney filed a notice of aggravating
evidence. (31 CT 6842-6845; 68 CT 15150-15152.)

On November 13, 1986, the case was assigned to Superior Court
Department 10, the Honorable William Kennedy presiding, for trial. (68 CT
15180-15181.)

On December 12, 1986, the District Attorney filed a motion requesting
consolidation of the case with CR 73093. (43 CT 9350-9453.) On December
23, 1986, the District Attorney filed a notice of evidence in aggravation. (44
CT 9503-9507.)

On February 9, 1987, the case (along with CR 73093) was reassigned to
Judge Laura Hammes for trial. (44 CT 9666-9671.)

On May 13, 1987, an amended information was filed charging appellant
with:

Count One - the murder of Suzanne Jacobs (Pen. Code, § 187);
Count Two - the murder of Colin Jacobs (Pen. Code, § 187); and
Count Three - the murder of Gayle Garcia (Pen. Code, § 187).
It was alleged that appellant personally used a knife in the commission

of the murders (Pen. Code, § 12022, subd. (b)). A multiple murder special



circumstance (Pen. Code, § 190.2, subd. (a)(3)) was alleged. It was also alleged
that appellant had previously been convicted of a serious felony (Pen. Code, §
667, subd. (a)). Appellant pleaded not guilty. (31 CT 6787; 69 CT 125320-
15321.)%

On June 6, 1988, the prosecution’s motion to consolidate case CR 73093
with this case (43 CT 9350-9353) was granted. (24 CT 5211-5212; 71 CT
15679-15680.)

Consolidation

On July 11, 1988, the District Attorney filed a consolidated information,
combining cases CR 73093 and CR 75195, and charging appellant with:
Count One - the murder of Suzanne Jacobs (Pen. Code, § 187);
Count Two - the murder of Colin Jacobs (Pen. Code, § 187);
Count Three - the murder of Gayle Garcia (Pen. Code, § 187);
Count Four - the kidnaping of Jodie Santiago Robertson (Pen. Code, § 207,
subd. (a));
Count Five - the attempted murder of Jodie Santiago Robertson (Pen. Code,
§§ 664, 187);
Count Six - the murder of Rhonda Strang (Pen. Code, § 187);
Count Seven - the murder of Amber Fisher (Pen. Code, § 187);
Count Eight - the kidnaping of Anne Swanke (Pen. Code, § 207, subd. (a));
and
Count Nine - the murder of Anne Swanke (Pen. Code, § 187).
It was alleged that appellant used a knife in the commission of all the
charged offenses (Pen. Code, § 12022, subd. (b)) and intentionally inflicted
great bodily injury in the commission of the kidnaping and attempted murder

2. This amended information deleted the prior conviction allegations,
with the exception of the serious felony prior conviction allegation.
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offenses (Pen. Code, § 12022.7). A multiple murder special circumstance was
alleged. (Pen. Code, § 190.2, subd. (a)(3).) It was further alleged that appellant
had previously been convicted of rape, a serious felony (Pen. Code, § 667,
subd. (a)). (19 CT 4107-4116; 25 CT 5219; 59 CT 12970-12973; 70 CT
15516-15517.)

Upon appellant’s refusal to plead to the consolidated information, not
guilty pleas and denials were entered on his behalf. (25 CT 5222; 70 CT
15918-15919.)

Jury selection commenced August 22, 1988. (25 CT 5235; 70 CT
15531-15532.) The jury was sworn December 8, 1988. (25 CT 5369; 70 CT
15647-14649.) The alternates were sworn December 13. (25 CT 5376; 70 CT
15653-15655.) Opening statements and presentation of the evidence
commenced January 3, 1989. (25 CT 5378.) Following presentation of the
evidence, instructions, and arguments, the jury retired for deliberations on June
12, 1989. (26 CT 5555.)

On June 21, 1989, the jury returned verdicts finding appellant guilty of
the first degree murders of Suzanne Jacobs (Count One), Colin Jacobs (Count
Two), and Anne Swanke (Count Nine), the kidnaping of Anne Swanke (Count
Eight) and Jodie Santiago Robertson (Count Four), and the attempted murder
of Jodie Santiago Robertson (Count Five). The knife use and great bodily
injury allegations as to those six counts were found true. The jury found the
multiple murder special circumstance true. The jury found appellant not guilty
of the murder of Gayle Garcia (Count Three) and was unable to reach verdicts
on the murders of Rhonda Strang (Count Six) and Amber Fisher (Count Seven).
(26 CT 5563-5573; 64 CT 14232-14240.)

On July 6, 1989, appellant waived jury on the prior serious felony
conviction allegation and, following a court trial, the allegation was found true.

(26 CT 5574-5575.)



The penalty phase commenced July 10, 1989. (26 CT 5576.) On
August 2, 1989, the jury returned its verdict imposing death. (26 CT 5600; 67
CT 14861.)

On September 19, 1989, appellant’s motion for a new trial was denied.
Modification of the death verdict was denied. Appellant was sentenced to death
for the murders of Suzanne Jacobs, Colin Jacobs, and Anne Swanke. The trial
court imposed a determinate term of 17 years as follows: The upper term of
nine years on the attempted murder conviction with an additional three years
for the great bodily injury finding, and a term of five years for appellant’s prior
serious felony conviction.? (26 CT 5603-5604A; 67 CT 14999-15008.)

On September 25, 1989, on motion of the prosecutor, the two murder

counts upon which the jury was unable to reach verdicts were dismissed. (26

CT 5678; 70 CT 15658.)

STATEMENT OF FACTS
INTRODUCTION

Appellant was convicted of six of nine charges arising from three of five
incidents: the murders of Suzanne and Colin Jacobs, the kidnapping and
attempted murder of Jodie Santiago, and the kidnapping and murder of Anne
Swanke. The facts of those incidents are presented in separate, chronological
headings. Because the jury heard and was allowed to consider evidence of the
murders of Gayle Garcia, Rhonda Strang and Amber Fisher in reaching its

verdicts, the facts of those crimes have been summarized in footnotes which

3. Each murder conviction was enhanced by one year for appellant’s use
of a knife, and the one year enhancements were stayed. A ten year term for
both kidnapping convictions (the upper term of seven years with three years
added for the great bodily injury finding) was imposed and stayed pursuant to
Penal Code section 654.



appear in the main text in the chronological sequence in which the crimes

occurred.

The May 4, 1979, Murders Of Suzanne Jacobs And Her Three-year
Old Son, Colin (Counts One And Two)

In 1979, Michael and Suzanne Jacobs lived at 3419 Arthur in San Diego,
with their son, Colin. (1 TRT 111-112.)¥ May 4 of that year started normally.
(1 TRT 112.) After getting up, Michael dressed, had coffee, and went to work
at his job at the North Island Air Station. (1 TRT 112.) Atlunchtime, Michael
called home; he had taken a sack lunch, but his name was not on the sack and
he needed to ask Suzanne what she had packed in his lunch so he could figure
out which lunch was his. (1 TRT 112.) He called between 11:00 and 11:30
a.m., but got no answer. (1 TRT 113.)

The Jacobs were expecting delivery of new dining room furniture that
day. (1 TRT 113.) They had advertised their old furniture in the newspaper
and received a few calls inquiring about their ad the night before. (1 TRT 113,
134.) It was Michael’s understanding that one of the callers was supposed to
come to the house that day. (1 TRT 135))

Edward and Margaret Harris¥ lived at 5005 34th Street in San Diego,
which is on the corner of 34th Street and Arthur. (1 TRT 155-156, 172, 174.)
The kitchen window of the Harris residence provided a view of the front of the
Jacobs’ house. (1 TRT 190.) Mrs. Harris had known Suzanne and Colin
approximately two years and they visited daily. (1 TRT 173.)

4. “TRT” refers to the Reporter’s Transcript of the trial.

5. On the day of the murders, the Harrises were not married and Mrs.
Harris went by her maiden name, Margaret Tucker. (1 TRT 155, 172.)
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The morning of May 4, 1979, Mrs. Harris did not see Suzanne, but she
saw a black-over-maroon sports car parked in the Jacobs’ driveway between
8:00 and 9:00 a.m. (1 TRT 174-177; 2 TRT 190, 216, 235.)

Later that morning, around 11:00 to 11:30 a.m., Mrs. Harris telephoned
the Jacobs residence to see if Suzanne wanted to go bicycle riding and received
no answer. (2 TRT 198, 207.) From her backyard, Mrs. Harris saw a
Montgomery Wards delivery truck arrive at the Jacobs residence between noon
and 12:30 p.m., and she saw the furniture being left on the porch. (2 TRT 198,
213-215.) It surprised her that Suzanne was not at home for the delivery
because Mrs. Harris knew Suzanne was expecting the furniture. (2 TRT 198.)

Louis Scott Hoeniger worked as a delivery truck driver for Montgomery
Wards and delivered the Jacobs’ dinette set to their residence on May 4 at 12:30
that afternoon; it was his first stop after lunch. (1 TRT 141, 143, 146.) He
knocked at the front door and, receiving no response, checked the side of the
house. (1 TRT 145.) He was at the house for approximately 10 minutes and
never raised an occupant; he heard nothing inside the house. (1 TRT 146.) The
dinette set was left at the house. (1 TRT 144.)

When Michael Jacobs returned home that afternoon, he saw the dinette
set on the front porch. (1 TRT 118.) When he entered his house he called out
his wife’s name and got no answer, then headed toward the bedroom. (1 TRT
118.) He noticed the bathroom door almost closed and when he opened it, he
saw blood everywhere. From the hall, he saw Colin’s body. (1 TRT 119.)
Michael walked out of the house, called to the Harrises, and collapsed on the
sidewalk. (1 TRT 119.)

Edward and Margaret Harris ran to Michael. Michael appeared to be in
shock and could not speak. (1 TRT 158.) The Harrises entered through the
front door and called to Suzanne and Colin several times. (1 TRT 159.)

Margaret went to the kitchen and Edward walked down the hallway where he



saw Colin. (1 TRT 160-161.) Edward stepped into the bedroom and saw
Suzanne, also dead. (1 TRT 162, 171.) He asked Margaret to call the police,
which she did. (1 TRT 162;2 TRT 199.) Margaret checked and found Colin
was not breathing, and the Harrises left the house. (1 TRT 162; 2 TRT 200.)

Captain Edward Fairhurst, a firefighter with the San Diego Fire
Department, arrived at the Jacobs house within two minutes of receiving the
emergency call. He spoke briefly with the Harrises, then entered the house. (2
TRT 246-247.) He walked down the hallway to the bedroom and found Colin
on the floor, then went back outside to call the police and seal the premises. (2
TRT 249-250.)

San Diego Police Officer Frederick George Edwards responded to the
Jacob’s residence and spoke with a fireman. He then entered the house and
walked down the hallway to a bedroom, where he discovered the bodies of
Colin and Suzanne. (2 TRT 261-263.) After checking for vital signs and
finding none, he retraced his steps and left the house. (2 TRT 263-264.)

Suzanne suffered a cutting or slashing style injury to her upper neck. (6
TRT 945.) The neck wound penetrated the skin, the underlying fatty tissue, the
muscle and the larynx, and severed the right jugular vein and right carotid artery
on the right side. (6 TRT 945.) The larynx had two cuts: one completely
through the upper portion and a second smaller cut below the first. (6 TRT
945, 952.) The first, upper, and larger cut extended below the larynx to the
surface of the backbone, cutting the fibrous tissue and muscle sheath on the
backbone. (6 TRT 950-951, 961, 964.)

Three additional injuries were observed during the autopsy of Suzanne:
a cut above the left collar bone, close to the midline, which penetrated the

‘subclavian vein (6 TRT 952, 956); a second cut in the mid-chest, left of the
mid-line in the same orientation as the neck wound, which penetrated the heart

and cut the pulmonary artery (6 TRT 953, 955); and a third cut to the right of
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the xiphoid process, which penetrated the abdomen and liver, and was vertically
oriented (6 TRT 953, 960). All three of these wounds were long and thin, with
one end rectangular and the other end coming to a tapering point. (6 TRT 954.)
The thin edge of the wounds was caused by the sharp edge of a knife blade,
with the other edge caused by the rectangular edge of a knife blade. (6 TRT
954.) All three additional wounds were potentially fatal without treatment. (6
TRT 954.)

Petechiae (specks of blood) on the far outer corner of Suzanne’s left
eyelid indicated reduction in oxygen or the circulation of blood in the capillaries
of the eyes prior to cessation of circulation (i.e., prior to death) and could have
been caused by the chest wound. (6 TRT 970-974.) Suzanne also had her
tongue clenched between her teeth, a condition which can be caused by restraint
under the jaw when a person is trying to open their mouth for air. (6 TRT 975.)

The cause of Suzanne’s death was massive hemorrhage due to laceration
of the right carotid artery, the right jugular vein, the liver, the pulmonary artery
and the left subclavian vein. (6 TRT 979.) The gaping neck injury was caused
by a very sharp-edged, relatively thick, stiff blade, at least two to two and one-
half inches in length. (6 TRT 979-980.) The number of interruptions in the
wound indicated at least six strokes. (6 TRT 980.)

Colin’s neck was also slashed - at least twice - extending from the left
side of the neck, across the larynx, to the right side behind the ear. (6 TRT 976-
977,984, 988.) Though the wound did not reach the backbone, it came within
1/4". (6 TRT 989.) The right jugular vein and right carotid artery were cut.
(6 TRT 984.) He also had cuts on the fingers, on the right thumb, and on the
palm at the base of the left thumb. (6 TRT 984.) Colin’s death was caused by

‘massive extensive hemorrhage from the carotid artery and jugular vein. (6 TRT

987.) The weapon was a sharped-edged, stiff blade. (6 TRT 987.)
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There was blood in the bathroom on the floor, on the bathroom rug, and
on the tub. (2 TRT 282-284.) There was blood in the hallway leading to the
master bedroom where the bodies were located (2 TRT 281). Three small
child-sized bloody footprints led from the bathroom into the master bedroom
to where Colin’s body was located. (2 TRT 343; 4 TRT 446.)¢ In the opinion
of the crime scene detective, Colin’s throat was cut in the bathroom and he
walked to the bedroom where he collapsed. (2 TRT 349; 4 TRT 483.)

In the bathroom, on the rug, was a blood-stained, piece of folded paper.
(2 TRT 283-284, 345.) On the paper, in hand printing were the words “Love
Insurance” and a telephone number, “280-1700.” (2 TRT 347; 4 TRT 456-458,
8 TRT 1356, 1360-1361.) Love Insurance was a nonstandard insurance
brokerage located at 4128 El Cajon Boulevard in San Diego. (11 TRT 1863.)
In May 1979, the business telephone number was 280-1700. (11 TRT 1864.)
The business advertised over the radio. (11 TRT 1864.) Price quotes were
given over the telephone, but a customer would have to come to the office to
fill out an application and make a down payment. (14 TRT 2434.) Love
Insurance company records (14 TRT 2436, 2442-2445) included appellant’s
motor vehicle printout (14 TRT 2436), a price quote for insurance coverage (14
TRT 2436), a receipt dated July 7, for an insurance payment (14 TRT 2438),
appellant’s application for insurance coverage (14 TRT 2439), a Love
Insurance check stub for a check to Colonial Insurance for appellant’s insurance
(14 TRT 2439), a second application for insurance by appellant (14 TRT 2447),
and additional records concerning the application and payment. (14 TRT 2448-
2456). The Love Insurance business records reflected appellant’s driver’s

license number as N686991. (14 TRT 2441, 2447.)

6. There was no blood leading to the child’s bedroom and no blood in
the child’s bedroom. (2 TRT 358.)
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The note was subjected to ninhydrin chemical process on May 11, 1979,
and resulted in a partial fingerprint. The partial print was examined by Leigh
Emmerson, a latent print examiner with the San Diego Police Department, on
May 14, 1979. (10 TRT 1809.) The print did not have enough points to make
an identification, but it came from an area close to the core or delta (the focal
point) of the finger. (10 TRT 1809-1810, 1812.) Based on the general pattern
that appeared, appellant could not be excluded. (10 TRT 1815, 1817.)
However, the print was not photographed and when the paper was later
examined in December 1980, the print was no longer visible. (8 TRT 1362-
1366; 9 TRT 1519.)

Two days after the murders, Mrs. Harris and her husband drove around
trying to find a car similar to the type of car she had seen parked in the Jacobs’
driveway on the morning of the murders. They found a similar car; it was an
MGB. (2 TRT 190-191, 221.) Department of Motor Vehicle (DMV) records
established that on December 20, 1974, a 1974 MG Midget was sold to
appellant’s mother, Patricia Jo Lucas. (14 TRT 2498, 2500, 2502-2503, 2526.)
The vehicle license plate number was 943MFD. (14 TRT 2500.) Appellant’s
DMV driving record reflected an accident on November 19, 1976, in a vehicle
with license plate number 943MFD. (14 TRT 2538, 2540, 2543.) Another
entry on appellant’s DMV driving record was dated November 11, 1979, again
in a vehicle with plate number 943MFD. (14 TRT 2544-2545.) Expert
testimony established that in the 1974 model year, the MGB and MG Midget
had the same body style. (14 TRT 2488.) The Midget was only slightly smaller
than the MGB. (14 TRT 2491.) DMV records also showed a transfer of the
MG Midget on October 23, 1986, to Robin Keith. (14 TRT 2527.) Keith was
arrested in the MG Midget on December 21, 1986. (14 TRT 2473, 2476,
2478.)
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John Harris, a questioned documents examiner or handwriting expert (13
TRT 2255-2262), compared the writing on the Love Insurance note to known
samples of appellant’s writing. (13 TRT 2270-2274, 2277-2278, 2306-2307,
2379-2385.) In his opinion, appellant wrote the writing on the Love Insurance
note. (13 TRT 2309.)

In the master bedroom, Suzanne’s body was on the floor between the
bed and a chest of drawers. (2 TRT 319, 324.) The back of her shirt and her
bra had been torn. (2 TRT 324-325.) There was blood on the front of the chest
of drawers. (2 TRT 325.) There was blood on the bedding and on the floor:.
(2 TRT 325-326.) In the opinion of the crime scene detective, the disarray,
blood, and Suzanne’s body in the master bedroom indicated her death occurred
during a struggle in the bedroom. (4 TRT 450.)

Adult-sized bloody footprints, with a waffle-type sole design, consistent
with a Vibram boot sole were found in the master bedroom, in the living room,
in the dining room, and in the kitchen. (2 TRT 311-312, 333-334, 340-342,
344-345,347, 4 TRT 446.) The footprints in the bedroom, hallway and living
room all headed toward the kitchen. (4 TRT 447.) The footprints in the
kitchen were overlapping in front of the kitchen sink, where drops of blood
were located. (2 TRT 314-316, 345; 4 TRT 447-448.) Two footprints - in the
dining room and the living room - pointed toward the front door, away from
the kitchen. (4 TRT 448, 485.) No footprints were found heading toward the
backdoor. (4 TRT 481.) All of the prints were consistent in size and placement
with a single person. (4 TRT 446.) None of the witnesses who entered the
house that day were wearing shoes with a similar type of sole pattern. (1 TRT
124 [Michael Jacobs], 166 [Edward Harris]; 2 TRT 200 [Margaret Harris], 252

'[Fire Captain Fairhurst], 266 [Officer Edwards], 356 [Detective Gleason]; 8
TRT 1269 [Evidence Technician Stewart].)
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From March 19, 1979 to June 1985, appellant worked at Precision Metal
on Bradley in El Cajon. (11 TRT 1914, 1916, 1928, 1994.) All employees
were required to wear safety boots purchased through the company. (11 TRT
1916-1917.) Company records for Lehigh Safety Shoe Company (Lehigh)
included an order from Precision Metal for boots, size 102 D, for appellant
dated April 3, 1979. (11 TRT 1884, 1886-1887.) Lehigh boots were
individually fitted with Vibram lug soles. (11 TRT 1891, 1902.) Roy Nilson,
retired Sheriff’s deputy and an expert in shoe print examination, made a
comparison between the bloody shoe print from the living room floor at the
Jacobs residence (Exh. 19) and an overlay made from a left boot of a pair of
Lehigh boots, size 10'2, which were manufactured on January 7, 1979. (4 TRT
449; 11 TRT 1891, 1967-1968, 1979-1981.) The front of the sole fit “very
closely” to the front of the shoe print, but the heel was out of alignment. (11
TRT 1982.) In Mr. Nilson’s opinion, the front alignment indicated the shoe
print was made by a style 100 Vibram sole and the heel variance was due to
individual variance in the manufacturing process. (11 TRT 1990-1995; see also
11 TRT 1902.) The shoe print was consistent with a 10%% size left Lehigh boot.
(11 TRT 2035, 2065.)Y

Appellant was not at work on Thursday, May 3, or Friday, May 4, 1979.
(11 TRT 1938-1939.) Between March and June 1979, appellant lived at
residential housing run by New Horizons program. (11 TRT 1955.) The
housing was located at 825 7th Street in San Diego. (11 TRT 1955.)

Samples were taken of the blood found throughout the house: living
room floor near television (7 TRT 1103-1104, 1124; 8 TRT 1272-1273);
kitchen floor footprint (7 TRT 1107; 8 TRT 1275); kitchen floor (7 TRT 1108;

7. Although Nilson opined on cross-examination that the bloody shoe
print appeared to have been made by a size 12 sole, a larger size sole used when
the correct size was is available, with the overage trimmed off. The heel of the
shoe print was made by a size 10 heel. (11 TRT 2019-2020, 2030, 2062.)
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8 TRT 1277); kitchen counter, near sink (7 TRT 1124; 8 TRT 1278); left faucet
handle (7 TRT 1125; 8 TRT 1287); kitchen sink soap holder and left edge of
sink (7 TRT 1127; 8 TRT 1289-1290); green towel on kitchen counter (7 TRT
1128; 8 TRT 1292); bathtub (7 TRT 1130; 8 TRT 1293); bath mat (7 TRT
1131; 8 TRT 1296); bathroom floor (7 TRT 1132; 8 TRT 1297); hallway floor
(7 TRT 1133; 8 TRT 1299); hall side of bedroom door (7 TRT 1134; 8 TRT
1301); doorjamb above light switch in bedroom (7 TRT 1135; 8 TRT 1303);
bedroom floor (7 TRT 1136; 8 TRT 1305); bedroom dresser and footboard of
bed (7 TRT 1137; 8 TRT 1306-12307); Suzanne’s nail clippings (7 TRT 1139-
1140; 8 TRT 1310); Love Insurance note (8 TRT 1164). All of the blood tested
consistent with Suzanne or Colin, or some other person with type “O” blood,
but inconsistent with Michael Jacobs. (8 TRT 1168.)¥

Hairs were visible in Suzanne’s right hand and were collected at the
scene and mounted on slides. (8 TRT 1179-1182 [Exh. 61B, 61C - slides],
1330-1331 [Exh. 61A - hair]; 12 TRT 2077-2079 [Exh. 61D - slide], 2105
[Exh. 61E - slide].) Additional hairs were recovered from Suzanne’s right hand
at the morgue and mounted on slides. (8 TRT 1342 [Exh 65A - hair]; 12 TRT
2112-2113 [Exh. 65B, 65C - slides].) Hairs from Suzanne’s left hand were
collected at the morgue and mounted on slides. (8 TRT 1347 [Exh 66A - hair];
12 TRT 2114-2115 [Exh. 66B, 66C - slides].) An additional hair was collected
from Suzanne’s left elbow at the morgue and mounted on a slide. (8 TRT 1347
[Exh 67A - hair]; 12 TRT 2115 [Exh. 67B - slide].) Hair and fibers were also
collected from the bedding in the master bedroom (8 TRT 1172-1175; 12 TRT
2107-2110 [Exh. 62A (hair), 62B (slide), 62C (slide), 62D (hair), 62E (slide)]),
the rug under Suzanne’s body (8 TRT 1176-1177; 12 TRT 2110-2111 [Exh.

8. Appellant’s blood was ABO type “A.” (12 TRT 2129; 28 TRT
5114.)
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- 63A (hair), 63B (slide)]), and Suzanne’s pants (8§ TRT 1178 [Exh 64A (hair)];
12 TRT 2111-2112 [Exh. 64B (slide)]).

Slides were also made containing the known head and pubic hair of
Suzanne (8 TRT 1349 [Exh. 68A (head hair)], 1352 [Exh. 69A (pubic hair)];
12 TRT 2116 [Exh. 68B (head hair slide)], 2117 [Exh. 69B (pubic hair slide)]),
the known head hair of Colin (8 TRT 1353 [Exh. 70A (head hair); 12 TRT
2118-2119 [Exh. 70B, 70C (head hair slides)]), and the known head hair of
appellant (12 TRT 2119-2122, 2130-2132 [Exh. 71A-71D])¢

Appellant was a possible donor of the hair from the bedding. (12 TRT
2154-2159.) Appellant was also “very close” to a match for a hair from
Suzanne’s right hand (Exh. 61C); Colin’s hair was less similar to the hair from
his mother’s hand than appellant’s. (12 TRT 2191-2192,2196.) Several other
hairs from Suzanne’s right hand (Exh. 61B, 61C, 61D) were also found to be
most similar to appellant’s hair and did not come from Suzanne or Colin. (12
TRT 2205-2209.) Other hairs from her right hand were also similar to
appellant’s hair. (13 TRT 2222 [Exh. 65C].) One hair from the rug under
Suzanne’s body (Exh. 63B) was similar to appellant but not to Suzanne or
Colin. (12 TRT 2216.) The hair from Suzanne’s left elbow (Exh. 67A, 67B)
was similar to appellant but not Suzanne or Colin. (13 TRT 2224.)

9. Samples of the chest, body, head, and pubic hairs were also collected
from Johnny Massingale and mounted on slides. (12 TRT 2122-2124.) Those
hair samples were compared with the hairs collected from Suzanne’s right hand
at the scene and there was no match. Massingale was excluded as the donor of
those hairs based on differences between them and his known hair. (12 TRT
2127; 46 TRT 8679.) Massingale is more fully discussed in the DEFENSE
subheading, infra.
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The June 8-9, 1984, Kidnapping And Attempted Murder Of Jodie
Santiago (Counts Four And Five)!?

10. The jury acquitted appellant of the December 8, 1981, murder of
Gayle Garcia. (26 CT 5563-5573; 64 CT 14232-14240.) Garcia was a real
estate agent. (15 TRT 2613.) Her body was discovered on December 8, 1981,
in the home of Annette Goff, around 6:05 pm, by Ms. Goff, a friend of Garcia’s
who had listed her house for sale with Garcia. (15 TRT 2611-2613, 2622-
2623.) The house had a for sale sign out front and was listed in an
advertisement in the newspaper that day. (15 TRT 2711-2712, 2745-2746.)
Garcia had been at the house at 5:35 p.m., when Goff called before she left her
work. (15 TRT 2616.)

Maria and Emmett Stapleton managed an apartment unit in the Casa De
Oro/Spring Valley area in December 1981 and had an apartment advertised for
rent in the December 7 newspaper. (38 TRT 7201, 7209-7210.) The evening
of December 7, Mrs. Stapleton received a telephone call when her husband was
at the store, from a man who insisted he be able to see the apartment that night.
(38 TRT 7202.) Although Mrs. Stapleton refused, someone came to their door
shortly after Mr. Stapleton arrived home from the store. (38 TRT 7204, 7211.)
The man seemed shocked when Mr. Stapleton answered the door, stuttered, and
left without asking about the apartment. (38 TRT 7216-7217.) The man was
appellant. (38 TRT 7215.) Appellant drove away in a foreign car. (38 TRT
7217.)

Appellant was the manager of a carpet cleaning business (M&A Carpet
Care) in December 1981. (20 TRT 3732, 3735.) Appellant did much of the
paper work as manager. (20 TRT 3740-3747.) However, his friend and
employee (and later business partner) Frank Clark made the entries for
December 8 and 9, 1981. (20 TRT 3747.) Clark did not know where appellant
was those two days. (20 TRT 3750, 3766; 23 TRT 4342-4343.) Appellant left
the business the afternoon of December 8, saying he had things to do. (21 TRT
3766.) Appellant paid Clark for filling in for him those two days. (23 TRT
4303.)

Garcia died from a large gaping wound to the neck, which went between
- the hyoid bone and the thyroid cartilage, through the carotid arteries and jugular
veins, and resulted in a notch on the side of the cervical vertebrae. (24 TRT
4493, 4504.) The edges of the wound were jagged and irregular. (24 TRT
4496.) Petechial hemorrhages in the eyes could have been caused by choking.
(24 TRT 4496-4498.)
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In June 1984, Jodie Santiago!!’ arrived in San Diego from her home in
Washington, to visit her brotﬁer, Terry Hopperstad, who lived in El Cajon. (38
TRT 7315-7316.) The evening of Friday, June 8, Santiago visited Baxter’s
restaurant, an establishment located across the street from her brother’s
apartment complex (the Timbers) on the corner of Marshall and Petree. (38
TRT 7317-7318, 7322; see Exhs. 162 (diagram), 163 (photograph).) Santiago’s

brother was not feeling well that evening, so Santiago went alone, across the

There were two parallel blood stains on the pants Garcia was wearing
which were generally consistent in length, shape and characteristics with a
model 112 Buck knife. (16 TRT 2792-2793.) A sheath for a model 112 Buck

knife was seized during a search of appellant’s residence. (16 TRT 2795.)
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